[BEFORE YOU PRINT THIS DOCUMENT IS 109 PAGES]

Consultation Council/Strategic Planning Committee Minutes March 8, 2012

Present

Cheryl Aschenbach (AS/Div Chair-faculty)

Terry Bartley (management)

Sandy Beckwith (Lead Counselor – faculty)

Carie Camacho (Div Chair -faculty)

Kayleigh Carabajal (Dean of Academic Services)

Dave Clausen (Dean of Admin Services)

Jeff Lang (classified)

Carol Montgomery (classified)

Sue Mouck (Accreditation Liaison -faculty) Eric Rulofson (Chair/ Facilities Planning) Cary Templeton (Dean of Student Services)

Absent

Colleen Baker (Div Chair-faculty) Shelly Baxter (management) Jennifer Bird (classified) Shawn Hubbard (ASB) Logan Merchant (Chair/IT Planning)

Ross Stevenson (Div Chair -faculty) -class conflict

Bill Studt (Interim President)

Guests

None

With a quorum present, the meeting began at 1:04 pm.

Consultation Council:

1. Review of March 13, 2012 Governing Board Agenda (Information)

There were no questions concerning the board agenda.

2. 2012 Governance NIPR (Consultation)

The Governance NIPR was accepted by consensus with the classified representatives abstaining in the absence of a classified signature on the front page.

3. Recommendation to Adopt Administrative Procedures for Chapter 3 (Consultation) - Dr. Carabajal

Consultation Council received the following administrative procedures for consideration at the next meeting: AP 3050- Institutional Code of Ethics, AP 3100 – Organizational Structure, AP 3200 -Accreditation, AP 3250 – Institutional Planning, AP 3280 – Grants, AP 3300 – Public Records, AP 3310 –Records Retention and Destruction, AP 3410 – Nondiscrimination, AP 3430 – Prohibition of Harassment, AP 3435 – Discrimination and Harassment Investigation, AP 3500 – Campus Safety, AP 3510 –Workplace Violence Plan, AP 3515 – Reporting of Crimes, AP 3516 – Registered Sex Offender Information, AP 3540 – Sexual and Other Assaults on Campus, AP 3570 – Smoking on Campus, AP 3710 – Securing of Copyright, AP 3715– Intellectual Property, AP 3750- Use of Copyrighted Material [copies attached]

4. Personnel Update (Information) – Administration

Several individuals indicated that the selection processes of several positions are moving forward.

Strategic Planning:

1. 2012-2017 Facilities Master Plan (Consultation) -- Eric Rulofson

Consultation Council/Strategic Planning forwarded the 2012-2017 Facilities Master Plan for inclusion in the Comprehensive Institutional Master Plan by consensus.

Other:

Sandy Beckwith asked if there is going to be local service available for copy machines through the new company. She was advised that the new company is committed to preventive maintenance.

The expectation is to experience a marked reduction in service calls, but the availability of a local service representative was unknown.

Information:

Next Meetings: March 22, 2012 & April 12, 2012

The meeting adjourned at 1:45 pm

Future Agendas:

- 1. 2012-2017 Human Resources Master Plan (Consultation) -unknown- Bill Sudt
- 2. Institutional Prioritization of Budget Requests from Administrative Areas (Consultation) Dave Clausen
- 3. Recommendation to Adopt Administrative Procedures for Chapter 3 (Consultation) unknown Dr. Carabajal
- 4. 2010 Administrative Services (Duplicating, Purchasing, Logistics, Fiscal Services) NIPR (Information) unknown Dave Clausen
- 5. Revised KPI's for 2011-2012 (Consultation) unknown -- Dr. Kayleigh Carabajal
- 6. 2011 Social Science IPR (Information) –unknown– Cheryl Aschenbach
- 7. 2011 Gunsmithing IPR (Information) unknown Cheryl Aschenbach
- 8. 2011 Journalism IPR (Information) unknown– Cheryl Aschenbach
- 9. Selection and Hiring Manual (Consultation) unknown
- 10. 2011 Instructional Services (Learning Center) NIPR (Information) April 12, 2012- Colleen Baker

2012 Governance Non- Instructional Program Review Executive Summary and Prioritized Recommendations

The Lassen Community College governance structure involves students, faculty, staff, administration, and the community through the Governing Board in the planning and operation of the college.

The governance structure and practices embrace the Lassen Community College values of supporting inclusiveness of individual and community viewpoints in collaborative decision-making processes; promoting mutual respect and trust through open communication and actions; and fostering integrity as the foundation for all we do.

The governance structure at Lassen Community College and collaborative decision-making processes utilized by the campus are articulated in Lassen Community College Shared Governance & Collegial Consultation Process Handbook. The governance structure consists of three primary components: Governing Board, Academic Senate and Consultation Council.

Governance Goals:

- 1. Recommend and adopt policies and procedures which support the established mission of the institution.
- 2. Recommend and adopt policies and procedures which promote institutional effectiveness and efficiency.
- 3. Recommend and adopt policies and procedures which promote student learning and obtainment of individual educational objectives.

With five years of experience with the current governance structure and processes and minor modifications made based on annual evaluations, campus confidence in the structure has continued to increase as has understanding of how it works. This has resulted in respected communication and decision-making and was critical to the recovery of Lassen College. It is important that students, faculty, staff, administration and the Governing Board stay committed to this effective structure.

B. Recommendations from Sections 1-6 (Prioritized)

1. Forward future recommendations for revisions to the institutional student-learning outcomes to the Governing Board.

- 2. Maintain the existing Academic Senate budget to include sufficient funds to cover the annual cost of sending a minimum of four faculty to a combination of the Fall and Spring Plenary Sessions and area meetings, and a minimum of two faculty to Curriculum and/or Faculty Development Training Workshops.
- 3. Develop budget line items for institutional governance and planning to include reassigned time, clerical support and supplies.
- 4. Ensure scheduling in a smart classroom or dedicate funds for the purchase of a portable projector for dedicated use by Senate.

Lassen Community College

Governance Non-Instructional Program Review

Spring 2012

Ms. Cheryl Aschenbach – Academic Senate President 2011-2012

Ms. Shawn-Hubbard – Student Trustee 2011-2012

Ms. Susan G. Mouck – Consultation Council Chair 2011-2012

Ms. Sophia Wages – Board of Trustees President 2010-2011

Academic Senate Action – February 28, 2012

Consultation Council Action— March 8, 2012

Board of Trustees Action -

Governance Non-Instructional Program Review

Section I: Program Goals and Objectives ———————	3
Section II: Outside Compliance Issues ———————	7
Section III: Student Learning Outcomes	8
Section IV: Personnel And Support Services ——————	9
Section V: Facilities And Equipment	12
Section VI: Budget	13
Section VII: Summary Of Program Recommendations	15

Section I: Goals and Objectives

Description:

The Lassen Community College governance structure involves students, faculty, staff, administration, and the community through the Governing Board in the planning and operation of the college.

The governance structure and practices embrace the Lassen Community College values of supporting inclusiveness of individual and community viewpoints in collaborative decision-making processes; promoting mutual respect and trust through open communication and actions; and fostering integrity as the foundation for all we do.

The governance structure at Lassen Community College and collaborative decision-making processes utilized by the campus are articulated in *Lassen Community College Shared Governance & Collegial Consultation Process Handbook*. The governance structure consists of three primary components: Governing Board, Academic Senate and Consultation Council.

Governance Goals:

- Recommend and adopt policies and procedures which support the established mission of the institution.
- 2. Recommend and adopt policies and procedures which promote institutional effectiveness and efficiency.
- 3. Recommend and adopt policies and procedures which promote student learning and obtainment of individual educational objectives.

Governing Board:

The responsibilities of the Governing Board, as identified in board policy 2200 include: (1) representing the public interest, (2) establishing policies that define the institutional mission and set prudent, ethical and legal standards for District operations, (3) hiring and evaluating the chief executive officer, (4) assuring fiscal health and stability of the institution, and (5) monitoring institutional performance and educational quality, while (6) delegating the power and authority to the chief executive officer to effectively lead the District. The Governing Board is the final authority for governance at Lassen Community College. The Governing Board delegates authority to the Superintendent/President, who in turn solicits and receives input through the governance decision-making process.

The Governing Board establishes its own goals in addition to the adoption of institutional strategic goals recommended through the consultation process.

Governing Board Goals:

- 1. Adopt policies consistent with legal mandates that support the institutional mission, provide for an effective institution and promote student learning.
- 2. Assure the financial stability of the institution

3. Select and evaluate an effective chief executive officer for the institution

The Institutional Strategic Goals reaffirmed by the Governing Board September 13, 2011:

Strategic Goal # 1 (Student Success): Enable students' attainment of educational goals, including degrees and certificates, transfer, job placement and advancement, basic skills, and lifelong learning.

Strategic Goal #2 (Responsive Curricula): Develop and implement curricula that is responsive to changing student-learning needs, to changing economic and workforce development needs, and to community cultural, social and civic interests.

Strategic Goal #3 (Student Access): Provide a college environment that reaches-out-to and supports students, minimizes barriers, increases opportunity, and increases success through access and retention.

Strategic Goal #4 (Resource Development): Develop and manage human, physical, technological and financial resources to promote growth and to effectively support the learning environment.

Strategic Goal #5 (Organizational Effectiveness) – Enhance organizational function in leadership, interaction, planning, and accountability to ensure responsive stewardship of public trust and resources.

Strategic Goal #6 (Community Leadership): Provide an environment that supports, partners and leads in the development and implementation of community initiatives.

Academic Senate:

Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations, which implements the legislature's intent in passing AB 1725, established relationships among the constituencies within California Community colleges to "ensure faculty, staff, and students the opportunity to express their opinions at the campus level and to ensure that these opinions are given every reasonable consideration, and the right to participate effectively in district and college governance, and the right of academic senates to assume primary responsibility for making recommendations in the areas of curriculum and academic standards." The Lassen Community College District Board adopted policy 2510 to further define the relationship.

In addition, Title 5 states that colleges are to rely on the recommendations of their academic senates on the development of academic and professional matters. (Title 5, Article 2, Section 53200). Board Policy 2510 further states that the Board of Trustees will "rely primarily" on the recommendations of the Academic Senate in the areas of:

- Curriculum, including establishing prerequisites and placing courses within disciplines;
- Degree and certificate requirements;
- Grading policies;
- Educational program development;
- Standards and policies regarding student preparation and success;
- Policies for faculty professional development activities;
- Processes for program review;
- Processes for institutional planning and budget development.

Board policy provides that other academic and professional matters such as:

• District and college governance structures, as related to faculty roles;

• Faculty roles and involvement in accreditation processes, including self-study and annual reports;

are to be reached through a process of "mutual agreement" by the College President and the Academic Senate.

The Governing Board will identify the method (rely primarily or mutually agree) to be utilized in consulting collegially at the time when other academic and professional matters are mutually agreed upon.

• Other academic and professional matters as are mutually agreed upon between the governing board and the Academic Senate.

Academic Senate Goals:

- 1. Represent the faculty in all professional and academic matters.
- 2. Promote and participate in shared governance as stipulated by Title 5
- 3. Foster continued sense of community, involvement and communication among faculty as well as other college groups.
- 4. Support and encourage excellence in teaching and learning
- 5. Continue to ensure understanding among faculty of the role of Instructional Program Review in institutional planning and budgeting

Consultation Council:

Consultation Council, which began meeting in Fall 2006 is the institution-wide shared governance/strategic planning body. Consultation Council met once each week for the last five years, but the number of meetings was reduced to twice a month Fall 2011. The agendas are divided into Consultation Council (governance) and Strategic Planning (planning) items. Further each items is identified as information/communication (one way flow of information), consultation (short discussions soliciting input, but no formal recommendation) and governance (protracted discussions with multiple readings, time for feedback from constituent groups resulting in a formal recommendation or acceptance by the body through consensus).

Consultation Council/Strategic Planning Goals:

- 1. Facilitate college-wide communication.
- 2. Foster an institutional view as opposed to an individual or constituent position.
- 3. Participate in institutional decision-making by developing recommendations for the President and Governing Board.

Evaluation:

Governing Board:

The Governing Board has effectively met its three primary goals for each of the last several years. The College initiated a comprehensive review of all board policies in 2009 utilizing the services of a consultation and recommendations from the Community College League of California. The Board has

worked in cooperation with the administration, Academic Senate and Consultation Council, the Board during this extensive review of all board policies and associated administrative procedures. The project should be completed by Summer 2012.

In order to address cash flow concerns, the Governing Board took action in 2010 to establish a recommended level of reserves equal to a minimum of two months of payroll with the preferred level equal to two months of operations. During difficult economic times, the Board has supported fiscally conservative budgets during the last two years.

Upon the resignation of the previous superintendent/president summer 2011, the Governing Board took steps to procure an interim superintendent/president for the 2011-2012 academic year. The Governing Board is currently engaged with the College in the process of hiring a permanent superintendent/president.

Academic Senate:

The Academic Senate has been a valued part of the governance process and recognizes the importance of faculty participation and representation. Since 2007, Lassen College administrators have regularly engaged and respected faculty positions on academic and professional matters. Senators have worked hard to receive input from faculty members and respond to faculty concerns. However, there is a continued need for involvement by all faculty members in addition to those already serving in leadership roles. Serving the Senate is time-consuming and does not currently count as meeting a faculty member's committee service contract obligation. Additional members of the faculty must be willing to volunteer, invest time and energy, engage faculty colleagues in often challenging conversations, and commit to promoting the best interests of students, faculty and the institution as a whole.

Consultation Council:

Consultation Council is a work in progress at the college. There have been numerous instances when the governance/planning body has worked extremely well. The Council has worked with constituent groups in the refinement and adoption of administrative procedures as well as master planning documents. The group has cooperatively prioritized budget allocation requests at the institutional level. There have also been occasions when the body did not work as well as might be expected. There have been a few contentious meetings where individuals did not offer their colleagues the respect and consideration that are expected of an arena of collegial consultation. There have been instances when communication was not as transparent as generally expected and decisions have been made independent of the process. There is still a lack of uniformity of understanding about the differences between issues appropriate for collegial consultation and issues requiring administrative decisions. However, the Council has continued to work through the issues in for the most part an atmosphere of collegial discourse.

The effectiveness of the governance structure and process is evaluated annually in May of each year. The evaluation process allows for recommendations from constituent groups, planning committees and individuals. Consultation Council reviews the recommendations and adopts agreed upon changes to the structure and/or process and the resultant changes are documented in the in Lassen Community College Shared Governance & Collegial Consultation Process Handbook published each fall.

Recommendations/Plan:

None

Section II: Outside Compliance Issues

Description:

Governing Board:

The Governing Board derives its authority from California Education Code Section 70902 [Board Policy 2000]. The Governing Board responsibilities are enumerated in Board Policy 2200 and include establishing policies consistent with the mission statement, which is reviewed annually and revised when appropriate. The board policies are made available to the public on the college website. The Governing Board conducts an annual evaluation during the fall semester of each year. The Governing Board has a Code of Ethics, which is reviewed annually and updated as appropriate. The Governing Board takes very seriously its responsibility for selecting and evaluating the Superintendent/President. [California Education Code Section 70902 & 72400; ACCJC Accreditation Standard IV.B. 1.a.-j.]

Academic Senate:

The role of the Academic Senate and its relationship with the Governing Board as identified in Title 5, Article 2, Section 53200 are articulated in board policy 2510, further clarified by administrative procedure 2510. [See Academic Senate in Section I for additional information] All recommendations concerning academic programs and services are developed and forwarded through established processes originating with faculty and involving the Curriculum/Academic Standards Committee, the Academic Senate and when appropriate the Governing Board. [Accreditation Standard IV.A. 2.b.]

Consultation Council:

Consistent with the expectations of the standards for accreditation as articulated in Standard IV – Leadership and Governance, the governance structure at Lassen Community College and collaborative decision-making processes utilized by the campus can be found in the Lassen Community College Shared Governance & Collegial Consultation Process Handbook.

[Accreditation Standard IV.A. 2.a.] The institutional governance and planning structure and processes are evaluated annually during May. The results of the evaluation are communicated to the campus and any recommendations are incorporated into the revised structure and process utilized during the following year. [Accreditation Standard IV.A. 5.]

Evaluation:

The institutional governance structure and processes are consistent with the requirements of Title V and expectations of Accreditation Standard IV.

-		-	4 -	(The
v	ACAM MA	n (1 4	TIANG	/Pan·
т,	(ecomme)	uua	HUHD	11411.

None

Section III: Student Learning Outcomes

Description:

Governing Board:

The Governing Board adopted the initial institutional student-learning outcomes developed by the Curriculum/Academic Standards Committee and recommended through the governance process on November 28, 2006.

Academic Senate:

The Curriculum/Academic Standards Committee, a subcommittee of the Academic Senate, initiated development of the first institutional student-learning outcomes during fall 2006 leading to their adoption by the Governing Board that November.

Program and course-level student-learning outcomes were adopted by the Academic Senate and not forwarded to the Governing Board.

The Curriculum/Academic Standards Committee revisited the previously adopted institutional student-learning outcomes during fall 2008. The initial institutional student-learning outcomes as adopted in Fall 2006, had a very limited scope relating only to academic programs. The Curriculum/Academic Standards Committee suggested that institutional student-learning outcomes needed to be broader in their scope applicable not only to academic programs, but also relevant to non-instructional activities and experiences resulting of taking individual courses. The Academic Senate adopted the revised institutional student-learning outcomes on March 23, 2009.

During the last two revisions of the Instructional Program Review Handbook (8th and 9th editions), the Senate has taken action to include a section for faculty to include for specific summaries of the budget and planning impacts of student-learning outcomes within each program based on examples of assessment and results of student-learning at the course and program level.

Consultation Council:

The expanding role of Consultation Council between 2006 and 2009 lead to the presentation of the proposed revised institutional student-learning outcomes to Consultation Council for discussion and consideration on February 19, 2009. Consultation Council adopted the four revised institutional student-learning outcomes with minor modifications on March 19, 2009. The current institutional student-learning outcomes are provided below:

Institutional Student-learning Outcomes:

Communication

Ability to listen and read with comprehension and the ability to write and speak effectively

Critical Thinking

Ability to analyze a situation, identify and research a problem, propose a solution or desired outcome, implement a plan to address the problem, evaluate progress and adjust the plan as appropriate to arrive at the solution or desired outcome

Life Long Learning

Ability to engage in independent acquisition of knowledge, ability to access information including use of current technology; ability to use the internet and/or library to access and analyze information for relevance and accuracy; ability to navigate systems

Personal/Interpersonal Responsibility

Ability to develop and apply strategies, to set realist goals for personal, education, career, and community development; ability to apply standards of personal and professional integrity; ability to cooperate with others in a collaborative environment for accomplishment of goals; ability to interact successfully with other cultures

Evaluation:

The faculty, through the Curriculum/Academic Standards Committee and Academic Senate, have taken a leadership role in the development of student-learning outcomes at all levels. Opportunity for dialogue and recommendations for the institutional student-learning outcomes has been provided to representatives of all constituents groups through the established governance structure. The current institutional student-learning outcomes were not presented to the Governing Board for their consideration.

Recommendation/Plan:

1. Forward future recommendations for revisions to the institutional student-learning outcomes to the Governing Board.

Section IV: Personnel and Support Services

Description:

Governing Board:

The Lassen Community College Governing Board, according to law, consists of seven (7) voting members elected at large for terms of four (4) years. Each trustee lives and represents the constituents within the boundaries of their trustee area. The Associated Student Body annually selects a non-voting student member (advisory vote recorded in the minutes). [Board Policies 2010, 2015 ASB Charter Election Code Article II.1 (a)(b), E.C. §72023.5, EC §72022,72023, and 72027]

A Special Trustee was assigned to the College by the Chancellor's Office in 2008. The Special Trustee's role was to assist the College in meeting the requirement of the Resolution Agreement negotiated between Chancellor's Office and the Governing Board. The Resolution Agreement includes a repayment plan from future apportionment to adjust for previous overpayment of apportionment. The Special Trustee also assisted the College with the resolution of accreditation issues, which had led to the College being placed on "sanctions. The Special Trustee has provided advice on legal matters and most recently, the recruiting of the Interim President when the previous President resigned. The Special Trustee will also assist the Trustees in the search for a permanent Superintendent/President beginning February 2012.

The Superintendent/President serves as the secretary to the Board. He provides a weekly "Friday E-mail" to all Trustees keeping them informed of events occurring at the College. The

Superintendent/President encourages Trustees to contact him should they have questions/concerns regarding the update.

The Annual Organizational Meeting for Trustees is held in December of each year to elect new leadership. Audit, Policy, and Finance Committee representatives are also elected at the Organizational Meeting.

The electronic meeting software, "Board Docs," was implemented on November 8, 2011. The electronic format expedites delivery of Trustee Board Packets including board agenda, all administrative reports, closed session items, etc. "Board Docs" allows accessibility to on-line references such as Education Code, Title V, Board Policy, and Procedures for Trustees providing immediate references. The Superintendent/President's Administrative Assistant is responsible for maintaining the system and notifying Trustees when new agendas are ready for review. Trustees including the Student Trustee have access to all previous board minutes/agendas.

The Governing Board is committed to the ongoing training of its membership. Each new trustee receives an individual orientation with the college president. The orientation covers topics such as: Trustee-CEO Relations, Trustee – Staff Relations and Lines of Authority, Brown Act Overview and Ethics Training, Conduct of the Board (Board as a Unit/Diverse Opinions/Solidarity in Decision-making), State of the College, Accreditation Overview, Board Meeting Logistics, and Trustee Development Opportunities. New Trustees are encouraged to attend the Community College League of California (CCLC) Effective Trustee Workshop held annually in January. Each year one to two Trustees are encouraged to attend additional training workshops such as the: Annual Convention and Partner Conferences, Board Chair Workshop, Annual Legislative Conference, and Annual Trustees Conference.

President Sophia Wages attended the Effective Trustee Workshop, as a refresher and the Board Chair Workshop in January 2010. Trustee Louis Hamilton attended the Effective Trustee Workshop in January 2011. President Jeff Hemphill and Vice-President Louis Hamilton attended the Board Chair Workshop in January 2012. Additionally, Trustee Chris Click participated as a member of the Trustee Accreditation Panel at the Annual Trustee Conference in May 2010.

Academic Senate:

The Senate is composed of six to eight faculty members elected by the Lassen College faculty. The faculty are elected for two-year terms to represent either the Physical Education/Vocational faculty or the Liberal Arts/Sciences faculty with three to four seats up for election annually in early May. There is always equal representation from each faculty division. All elected senators are full-time tenured faculty. Although the Senate President receives a 10% stipend per LCFA-LCCD contract, the Senate does not have any clerical support; senators produce all Senate agendas, minutes and documents. Senate officers are elected from within Senate every May once new senators are seated. Officers include the positions of president, vice-president, and secretary. There are no term limit restrictions for senators or for senate officers. There is no compensation for senators, nor does serving on the Senate currently satisfy the faculty contract requirement for committee service. This is something the Senate can discuss and act on during the next round of faculty committee assignments.

Consultation Council:

The initial membership of Consultation Council in Fall 2006 consisted of four administrators, two faculty, two classified, three managers and no students. The Accreditation Steering Committee chair although not a member attended meetings. As a result of the initial annual

evaluation the accreditation steering committee chair, a student and four division chairs (faculty) were added to the membership. Subsequently, Consultation Council and the Strategic Planning Committee were combined again as a result of the annual evaluation in May of each year. The May 2010 evaluation resulted in the addition of the chairs of each of the master planning committees to the committee. Currently, Consultation Council memberships consists of four administrators, four faculty division chairs, one faculty academic senate president (currently also a division chair), one faculty accreditation liaison officer, one faculty lead counselor, three managers (including the president), three classified, one student and the chairs of five master planning committees (currently three are redundant as members due to their other positions). The chair of the council elected each fall has served as the secretary, preparing agendas and minutes. Subsequently, the executive assistant to the college president distributes the agendas and minutes to the campus community.

Evaluation:

Governing Board:

Although the "Board Docs" system is new it is expected to improve communication between administration and trustees. Hard copy reproduction of documents and reports for each Trustee packet have been eliminated and documents and reports are scanned to "Board Docs" for easier access and review. The District expects to save the cost of duplication of documents and monthly drives to Trustees' homes (sometimes twice a month) in order to deliver agenda materials.

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of training and the benefits derived from the interactions with each other and Trustees from other Community Colleges. With one exception, all current Trustees have attended the CCLC Effective Trustee Workshop. The current and previous chairs have attended the Board Chair Workshop. The Governing Board plans to direct the incoming Superintendent/President to continue the new Trustee Orientations. Training participation by Trustees is monitored through the Board annual self-evaluation process completed each fall.

Academic Senate:

While six to eight faculty is sufficient depending on the total number of full-time faculty employed at Lassen College, there has been discussion within the Senate that the two-division structure outlined in the Senate by-laws could be updated to reflect the current four-division structure in place within Academic Services. One drawback to this is that the number of divisions identified by Academic Services has been fluid from four to three and back to four divisions effective June 2011. While Academic Services need only reach agreement with LCFA to determine the number of divisions in use during an academic year, the Senate must update its identified divisions in the by-laws through a vote of members.

The Senate appropriately represents faculty from all disciplines based on the two-division structure in Senate bylaws. However, there has been discussion that an adjunct position on the Senate could be included, increasing the Senate to seven or nine faculty, to provide a specific adjunct voice on academic and professional matters. This could be beneficial to faculty conversation, however the Senate must decide if the benefits outweigh the risks of a temporary faculty serving on Senate and potentially taking public positions on issues in contrast with administrative positions; this is part of why all full-time senators are tenured rather than probationary faculty.

Consultation Council:

The membership is modified as appropriate through the governance and planning evaluation process conducted annually each May.

Recommendation/Plan:

None

[The entities rather than the District determine the personnel of each of the governance bodies (Governing Board, Academic Senate, and Consultation Council)].

Section V: Facilities and Equipment

Description:

Governing Board:

The Governing Board meetings moved from an outdated portable room to a renovated Board Room Fall 2011. The portable building previously utilized for Trustee meetings was converted to cold storage. The new Board Room is an up-to-date facility with technological capabilities and a much larger room capacity. Laptop computers are provided for each Trustee and Administrative staff during meetings to view agenda during meetings. A large projection screen has been provided for the public in addition to the large screen in front of the Trustees.

Academic Senate:

The Senate does not have any direct responsibility for facilities and does not own any equipment. Senate meets regularly in any classroom determined to be available for the duration of the semester on the day and time when Senate meetings are held. The basic office equipment used by all faculty is used by senators when conducting Senate business: computer, printer, copier, stapler and paper clips, etc.

Consultation Council:

Consultation Council has been meeting for the last several years in the Child Development adult classroom. The classroom has the advantage of tables and chairs, which can be combined to form one large table around which the entire council can sit facing one another. The chair of the Council has utilized the faculty computer for preparation of agendas, minutes and other documents for distribution.

Evaluation:

Governing Board:

BoardDocs offers more transparency of school business and is available for public access on-line, as well as during the scheduled meetings for the staff audience/community member. Trustees are feeling comfortable with the new paperless technology and the quick access to previous minutes, agendas, and all district documents as well as other on-line resources.

Academic Senate:

The Senate's use of computer and printer within the Senate President's office is not a problem, nor is regular access to the copiers used by all faculty. However, the Senate could benefit from either meeting in a room with a projector or having a portable projector regular available and assigned to the Senate so that paperless meetings can be held with materials projected during meetings.

Consultation Council:

The classroom utilized for Consultation Council meetings has worked well over the past several years. If that classroom becomes unavailable, it is important that the Council be provided meeting space where participants can sit around a single large table in order to foster maximum collegial dialogue during the meetings.

Recommendation/Plan:

1. Ensure scheduling in a smart classroom or dedicate funds for the purchase of a portable projector for dedicated use by Senate.

Section VI: Budget

Description:

Governing Board:

Trustees generally meet twice monthly and sometimes more often. Several Trustees serve on a variety of additional committees. Special meetings may be called to discuss budget, personnel or other items of concern. Trustees including the Student Trustee are paid mileage as well as a stipend of \$240.00 for each month during which they attend the required number of meetings.

The Trustees receive the same health benefit package as the full-time administrators and managers. Prior to October of each year, Trustees have the opportunity to discuss health plan costs and stipend changes as allowable by Board Policy. Any change in stipend must be brought to the full board for discussion and change in policy, if necessary.

Two Trustee Retreats and four Workshops are scheduled each year allowing for Trustee discussions/ and planning for student success, institutional needs and financial planning.

Funding for attendance at California Community College Trustee (CCCT) Leadership Conferences by Trustees is provided in the budget.

The current Superintendent/President Search will require several Trustees to travel to candidate school sites for visitation. (Reference: BP 2305 EC Section 7200 (c)(2)(A)

The Student Trustee is seated by June of each year and is afforded the same monthly stipend that the Trustees receive. (Reference: Education Code Section 72023.5)

Budget Category	2010-2011 Allocated Budget	2011-2012 Allocated Budget
Governing Board Stipends	\$20,160.00	\$20,160.00
Taxes/Medical Benefits	\$122,216.00	\$122,016.00
Supplies	\$260.00	0
Travel	\$8,500.00	\$6,000.00

Academic Senate:

The Academic Senate President and Chair of the Curriculum/Academic Standards Committee, a subcommittee of the Academic Senate, each receive an annual stipend of ten percent of step 13

of the full-time faculty salary schedule. The Senate has had a budget of \$2,000 annually to be used primarily for conference registration fees and travel to plenary conferences. While this has been the budget since the current Senate President took office in 2008, the budget was increased to nearly \$7,000.00 this academic year.

Budget Category	2010-2011 Allocated Budget	2011-2012 Allocated Budget
Academic Senate President	\$7,441.00	\$7,408.00
Stipend		
Taxes	\$986.00	\$990.00
Travel	\$800.00	\$6,000.00

Consultation Council:

There is no budget for the operation of Consultation Council/Strategic Planning Committee. The Consultation Council chair, who serves as the committee secretary, receives no compensation. The agenda and minutes are distributed electronically and individuals are asked to print copies for their own use. Planning documents are developed by planning committees utilizing the budgets of the planning committee chairs District positions to cover any costs. Documents are printed using either theinstitutional research or president/superintendent's budget.

Evaluation:

Governing Board:

The budget for the operation of the Governing Board including travel to training workshops has been adequate for the last several years. Trustees are reviewing the current Board stipend, which was initiated in the early 1990s.

Academic Senate:

Maintaining a Senate budget that allows for the travel of more than one person to Fall and Spring Plenary, and area meetings and other ASCCC institutes is critical so that faculty can stay connected at the state level and have access to information of relevance to Lassen College.

Consultation Council:

The District needs to demonstrate institutional support of both the institutional governance and planning processes through provision of a budget for these important activities. The budget should include recognition of the time commitment by personnel for both governance and planning. Clerical support for both activities should be provided, most likely through the incorporation of responsibilities into an existing administrative support position. A supply budget to cover at a minimum to cost of printing governance, planning, budget development and evaluation documents needs to be developed.

Recommendation/Plan:

- 1. Maintain the existing Academic Senate budget to include sufficient funds to cover the annual cost of sending a minimum of four faculty to a combination of the Fall and Spring Plenary Sessions and area meetings, and a minimum of two faculty to Curriculum and/or Faculty Development Training Workshops.
- 2. Develop budget line items for institutional governance and planning to include reassigned time, clerical support and supplies.

Section VII: Summary of Recommendations

Prioritized Recommendations from Sections 1-6

- 1. Forward future recommendations for revisions to the institutional student-learning outcomes to the Governing Board.
- 2. Maintain the existing Academic Senate budget to include sufficient funds to cover the annual cost of sending a minimum of four faculty to a combination of the Fall and Spring Plenary Sessions and area meetings, and a minimum of two faculty to Curriculum and/or Faculty Development Training Workshops.
- 3. Develop budget line items for institutional governance and planning to include reassigned time, clerical support and supplies.
- 4. Ensure scheduling in a smart classroom or dedicate funds for the purchase of a portable projector for dedicated use by Senate.

Proposed Lassen Community College District Procedure

CCLC No. 3050

General Institution DRAFT as of 2/29/12

AP 3050 INSTITUTIONAL CODE OF ETHICS

Reference:

ACCJC Accreditation Standard III.A.1.d

Definition of Ethics

Ethical behavior is often defined as "right" or "good" behavior as measured against commonly accepted rules of conduct for a society or for a profession. The ethical person is often described in absolute terms as one who is fair, honest, straightforward, trustworthy, dispassionate, and unprejudiced. If, however, one is inconsistently fair or honest, one loses credibility and is perceived to be unethical. The ethical person must be conspicuously consistent in the exercise of integrity to sustain the credibility that is an expectation of office.

Importance of Ethics

The credibility of the District's employees depends upon whether they are perceived as honest men and women. If integrity contributes to credibility, then ethical behavior is a singular prerequisite to successful performance. When people are convinced that public institutions employ honest individuals, questions of credibility and demands for public accountability rarely arise.

Statements of ethical standards do not necessarily ensure ethical behavior. Yet public statements of intent surely create an expectation that public officials will indeed act with integrity in the public interest.

Expectations for Ethical Behavior

Employees of the District shall be committed to the principles of honesty and equity. They shall not seek to abridge for any purpose the freedoms of other employees or students. At the same time, they shall not willingly permit the right and privileges of any members of the college community to override the best interests of the public served by the District.

Employees shall exercise judgments that are dispassionate, fair, consistent, and equitable. They shall exhibit openness and reliability in what they say and do as educational leaders. They shall confront issues and people without prejudice. They shall do everything they can to demonstrate a commitment to excellence in education and without compromise to the principles of ethical behavior.

Similarly, students are expected to abide by ethical behavior and decision-making in their treatment of District employees, other students, and members of the public.

Employee Responsibilities

1. With respect to students:

- a. Remain continuously informed of characteristics, preferences, and educational needs of the local community.
- b. Provide and protect student access to educational resources of the District.
- c. Protect human dignity and individual freedom, and assure that students are respected as individuals, as learners, and as independent decision-makers.
- d. Invite students to contribute to the District decisions and directions.
- e. Protect students from disparagement, embarrassment, or capricious judgment.
- f. Keep foremost in mind at all times that the District exists to serve students.

2. With respect to colleagues and staff:

- a. Develop a climate of trust and mutual support through the governance process characterized by participation of the people affected; focus on objectives rather than personalities; respect for reason, freedom of expression, and right to dissent.
- b. Foster openness by encouraging and maintaining two-way communication.
- c. Encourage, support, and abide by written policies and procedures and to communicate clearly to new staff members the conditions of employment, work expectations, and evaluation procedures.
- d. Provide opportunities for professional growth.
- e. Provide due process with opportunity for appeal and review of employee evaluation.
- f. Challenge unethical behavior in a timely manner.

3. With respect to the Board of Trustees:

- a. Keep the Board of Trustees informed so it can act in the best interests of the District and the public.
- b. Act in the best interest of the District even when that action conflicts with an interest of an administrator or individual colleagues.
- c. Be guided by the principles and policies established by the Board of Trustees.

Office (of Primary	/ Responsibility:	_Superintendent/President_	
	JI FIIIIIAI)	/ MESPONSIBILITY.		

NOTE: This procedure is **legally required**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in **blue ink** is additional language to consider including in this procedure.

Date Approved:

General Institution DRAFT as of 2/29/012

AP 3100 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

References:

Education Code Section 72400; Title 5 Sections 51023.5 and 53200

The District's organizational structure shall be:

[Note: Insert the District's organizational charts.]

Administrative and supervisory personnel shall function in accordance with the organizational chart. The Superintendent/President shall reserve the right to make adjustments in the responsibilities of administrative and supervisory personnel with consideration for the workload and/or the efficiency and capabilities of the affected administrator as deemed appropriate and necessary.

Duties and Responsibilities of Area Administrators:

All administrators have duties and responsibilities in common. The general duties and responsibilities are as follows:

- 1. To plan, organize and administer the activities of their area effectively and efficiently.
- 2. To maintain effective relations with faculty, students, the community, and other educational institutions.
- 3. To keep informed of new developments relating to their function and to maintain a creative and experimental attitude toward change, in order to improve continuously the operation of their areas.
- 4. To recommend the selection of personnel for their areas.
- 5. To recommend the organizational structure and staffing of the areas.
- To establish and maintain in their areas a climate which encourages the development of personnel, the retention of competent personnel, and a high level of morale.

- 7. To maintain the reporting relationship to their immediate supervisor by keeping them informed of activities of their areas, apprising them particularly of major or unusual developments, and seeking their advice and counsel.
- 8. To promote an integrated effort in the administration of the college by cooperating with other administrators and staff and coordinating activities.
- 9. To recommend the budget for their areas.
- 10. To serve on committees and councils as directed by Governing Board policies, by the immediate supervisor, or the Superintendent/President.
- 11. To attend professional meetings as directed by the immediate supervisor and/or the Superintendent/President.
- 12. To interpret college policies and programs accurately and constructively.

To perform any other duties assigned or delegated by the immediate supervisor.

Also see BP 2410 titled Policy and Administrative Procedure, BP 2430 titled Delegation of Authority to the Superintendent/President, and BP 2510 titled Participation in Local Decision Making

Office of Primary Responsibility: Su	uperintendent/President
--------------------------------------	-------------------------

NOTE: This procedure is **legally advised**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The wording in **black ink** is from current Lassen College Policy 2000 titled Administrative Organization adopted on 4/04/78 and revised on 7/20/82, 1/20/87, and 7/08/97 as well as Policy 2100 titled Duties and Responsibilities of Area Administrators adopted on 4/04/78 and revised on 7/20/82, 1/20/87, and 7/08/97. The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

(Replaces current Lassen College Policies 2000 and 2100)

General Institution DRAFT as of 3/29/12

AP 3200 ACCREDITATION

References:

ACCJC Accreditation Eligibility Requirement 20; ACCJC Accreditation Standard IV.B.1.i

Note: This procedure is legally required. Insert local practice regarding procedures related to accreditation self-study processes and accreditation standards. The procedures may reference or incorporate portions of the ACCJC Guide to Self-Study.

The College follows the four-step accreditation process as outlined in the ACCJC Accreditation Reference Handbook:

"ACCJC member institutions agree to undergo an Educational Quality and Institutional Effectiveness Review every six years to determine whether they are meeting the established Accreditation Standards, including the federal requirements, Eligibility Requirements, Commission policies, and that they are engaged in sustainable efforts to improve educational quality and institutional effectiveness. The review process includes four steps: internal evaluation (i.e., institutional self evaluation), external evaluation, Commission review and accreditation action, and continuous institutional improvement.

- 1. The accreditation process starts with an institutional self evaluation process wherein the institution conducts an evaluation of itself against the requirements stated above and in terms of its stated institutional purposes. The outcome of the institutional self evaluation process is a written analysis, a Self Evaluation Report of Educational Quality and Institutional Effectiveness (Institutional Self Evaluation Report), which is submitted to the ACCJC.
- 2. The Commission appoints a team of trained, external, peer reviewers from its database of evaluators. The evaluators are accomplished professionals from institutions within and outside the region who are responsible for the external evaluation of a particular institution. The team examines the Institutional Self Evaluation Report, visits the institution as assigned, writes an External Evaluation Report of Educational Quality and Institutional Effectiveness that determines the institution's compliance with the Accreditation Standards and other requirements, makes recommendations for improvement, and commends excellent practice, when appropriate. The evaluation team submits its External Evaluation Report of Educational Quality and Institutional Effectiveness (External Evaluation Report) to the Commission.
- 3. It is the responsibility of the nineteen-member Commission to determine the accredited status of an institution. In determining this status, the Commission

- uses the institutional Self Evaluation Report, the External Evaluation Report, and the accreditation history of the institution. The Commission decision is communicated to the institution via an action letter and is made public through Commission announcements.
- 4. The last and continuous step in the Educational Quality and Institutional Effectiveness Review is that of improvement. Each institution is expected to continuously assure the quality of its educational programs and services, supporting institutional structures as well as address the recommendations provided in the External Evaluation Report."

Office of Primary Responsibility: _Sur	perintendent/President
NOTE: This procedure is legally required . consider including in this procedure.	The information in blue type is additional language to

Date Approved:

(This is a new procedure recommended by the League and the League's legal counsel)

General Institution DRAFT as of 3/29/12

AP 3250 INSTITUTIONAL PLANNING

References:

<u>Title 5 Sections 51008, 51010, 51027, 53003, 54220, 55400 et seq., 55510, and 56270 et seq.</u>;

ACCJC Accreditation Standard I.B

Note: Procedures related to planning may be locally developed after appropriate consultation with the proper constituent representatives in the local decision making process. It is suggested that those procedures include or address criteria in the Accreditation Standard, including but not limited to:

- Processes for developing, reviewing, updating, and implementing plans
- The committees and personnel that are involved and their responsibilities and charges
- Required approvals
- Integration of various planning efforts
- Use of institutional effectiveness research
- Submission to the State Chancellor's Office, when required

PROGRAM REVIEW AND PLANNING

Instructional Program Review Process

The District is committed to instructional quality and institutional accountability. Instructional program review is the core component and driving force behind that commitment. The instructional program review process is required for all campus and District long range planning that is aimed at meeting its educational goals and responsibilities

- Each instructional program must complete an in-depth program review, at a minimum every four years; all vocational programs must complete program review every two years.
- 2. The instructional program review process relies on self-study and student evaluations.
- 3. The subject area faculty, working with their division chair, are responsible for conducting and completing the instructional program review process.
- 4. The Office of Academic Services will provide the required data and clerical assistance.

5. Instructional program review documents will be submitted to the Academic Senate and Chief Instructional Officer for review upon completion. The Academic Senate and Chief Instructional Officer will jointly present the final approved document to the Governing Board for their acceptance.

Only upon acceptance of the instructional program review documents by the Governing Board may a program's recommendations be considered in the integrated planning process for instructional, budgetary and facility planning.

Procedures governing the instructional program review process are found in the Lassen Community College Instructional Program Review Policy and Procedures Handbook, which is periodically revised.

Non-Instructional Program Review Process

The Non-Instructional Program Review is the foundation for all campus and District long range planning which is aimed at meeting the administrative and support services goals and responsibilities.

The following criteria are to be followed:

Also see AP 6200 titled Budget Preparation

- 1. Each non-instructional program must complete an in-depth program review every four years.
- 2. The review process will include a self-study and evaluations.
- 3. The Administrative and service programs area staff are responsible for conducting and completing the program review process.
- 4. Program review reports will be submitted to the Superintendent/President for review.
- 5. The Superintendent/Review will present the final report to the Board of Trustees for its acceptance.

Procedures governing this program review process are found in the Lassen Community College Non-Instructional Program Review Policy and Procedures Handbook.

	•	
Office of Primary Responsibility:	_Superintendent/President	

NOTE: The **red type** signifies **legally required** language recommended from the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The wording in **black ink** is from current Lassen College Policy 6150 titled Lassen Community College Instructional Program Review Policy adopted on 5/21/91 and revised on 3/25/97, 6/23/98, and 8/12/08 and Policy 2920 titled Non-Instructional Program Review Policy adopted on 6/10/97 and revised on 7/8/97. The information in **blue type** is additional language to consider including in this procedure.

(Replaces current Lassen College Policies 6150 and 2920)

General Institution DRAFT as of 3/29/12

AP 3280 GRANTS

Reference:

Education Code Section 70902

The Governing Board encourages staff members to make applications for grants from State, Federal, or private agencies. To assure the content of these applications extends the resources available to the District for the implementation of approved long-range plans of the College, the following procedure applies:

- 1. The grant applicant presents an abstract to President's Cabinet for initial approval. The initial approval form indicates submission, implementation and reporting timelines, funding source, matching fund requirements, impact on District resources (to include personnel, facilities, equipment, supplies and technology) and alignment with long-range planning goals. Grant approvals require adherence to the following criteria:
 - a. Alignment with and support for the District's mission, vision and longrange planning goals
 - b. Minimal negative impact on District resources
 - c. Timeline feasibility
 - d. Resource availability
 - e. Non-duplicative efforts
 - f. Institutional capacity to administer grant
- 2. The Superintendent/President and the Deans approve, disapprove or return the abstract for revisions. Once initial approval is secured, the grant applicant prepares the grant application. The grant application is submitted to Cabinet for final review and approval prior to submission to the funding source.
- 3. The President/Superintendent informs the Board of Trustees of the grant submission and the final outcome regarding the grant award.

Office of Friffially Nesponsibility. Superintendently resident	Office of Primary Respons	sibility: Sup	perintendent/President
--	---------------------------	---------------	------------------------

NOTE: This procedure is **suggested as good practice**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

CC League and the League's legal counsel)

AP 3300 PUBLIC RECORDS

References:

Government Code Sections 6250 et seg.

Members of the public may request to inspect or copy public records. A request by a member of the public may be delivered by mail or in person to the Dean of Administrative Services.

Any request shall identify with reasonable specificity the records that are sought. If additional information is needed, the Dean of Administrative Services may request it be provided in writing.

Any request to inspect records shall be made sufficiently in advance of the date of inspection to allow staff members time to assemble the records and identify any records that may be exempt from disclosure.

Records that are exempt from disclosure under the Public Records Act or any other provision of law may not be inspected or copied by members of the public. Social security numbers must be redacted from records before they are disclosed to the public.

Members of the public shall be assisted in identifying records or information that may respond to their request. Assistance that will be provided includes: the information technology and physical location in which the records exist; practical suggestions for overcoming denial of access to the records or information; and the estimated date and time when the records will be made available.

Within ten days, the Dean of Administrative Services will determine whether or not the records can be produced and will communicate the determination to the member of the public requesting the record(s).

Governing Board Records:

The approved budget, statistical compilations, reports, notices, bulletins, memoranda, minutes of meetings and official communications between governmental branches or public records, and access thereto during normal hours of business may be granted to any citizen. When access to college or district records is granted, examination thereof will be made in the presence of the college representative designated by the Secretary of the Board regularly responsible for maintenance of files.

Not included in the category of records to which the privilege of access is given are the following:

- 1. Personnel records
- 2. Student records

The most common public records exemptions for community colleges include:

- Student records (Education Code Section 76243)
- Preliminary drafts, notes, or interagency or intra-agency memoranda that are not retained by the public agency in the ordinary course of business, provided that the public interest in withholding the records clearly outweighs the public interest in disclosure. (Government Code Section 6254(a))
- Records pertaining to pending litigation ...or to claims...until the pending litigation or claim has been finally adjudicated or otherwise settled. (Government Code Section 6254(b))
- Personnel, medical or similar files, the disclosure of which would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy (Government Code Section 6254(c))
- Test questions, scoring keys, and other examination data used to administer a licensing examination, examination for employment, or academic examination [except for standardized tests provided for by Education Code Sections 99150 et seq.]. (Government Code Section 6254(g).)
- The contents of real estate appraisals or engineering or feasibility estimates and evaluations...relative to the acquisition of property, or to prospective public supply and construction contracts, until all of the property has been acquired or all of the contract agreement obtained. (Government Code Section 6254(h)).
- Internet posting of home address or telephone numbers of local elected officials (Government Code Section 6254.21)
- Home addresses and home telephone number of employees of a school District or county office of education (other than to an agent or family member of the employee, to an officer of another school District when necessary, to an employee organization, or to an agency or employee of a health benefit plan.) (Government Code Section 6254.3)
- Records regarding alternative investments (i.e. an investment in a private equity fund, venture fund, hedge fund, or absolute return fund; limited partnership, limited liability company or similar legal structure) involving public investment funds, unless already publicly released by the keeper of the information.

Office of Primary Responsibility: _Dean of Administrative Services

NOTE: This procedure is **legally required**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The language in **black ink** is current Lassen College Policy 1370 titled Meetings and Records Open to the Public adopted on 3/15/77 and revised on 1/6/87, 4/22/97, and 4/13/04. The information in **blue ink** is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

(Replaces current Lassen College Policy 1370)

AP 3310 RECORDS RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION

References:

<u>Title 5 Sections 59020 et seq.</u>; Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Rules 16, 26, 33, 34, 37, and 45

Procedures for records retention and destruction:

- "Records" means all records, maps, books, papers, data processing output, and documents of the District required by Title 5 to be retained, including but not limited to records created originally by computer and "electronically stored information" ("ESI"), as that term is defined by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
- The Dean of Administrative Services shall supervise the classification and destruction of records and ESI. The District must preserve ESI and ESI that is relevant to actual or potential litigation pursuant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The District shall comply with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and produce relevant ESI in the form in which it is ordinarily maintained or readily usable. An annual report shall be made to the Board of Trustees regarding the classification and destruction of records and ESI.
- Records shall be classified as required by Title 5 and other applicable statutes, federal and state regulations.
- Records shall annually be reviewed to determine whether they should be classified as Class 1 Permanent, Class 2 Optional, or Class 3 Disposable (as defined in Title 5).
- Class 3 disposable records shall be maintained for the period required by applicable law or regulation, but in any event shall be retained for at least three college years after the year in which they were originally created.
- Destruction is by any method that assures the record is permanently destroyed, e.g. shredding, burning, and pulping.

		_	
Office of Primary	/ Responsibility:	Dean of Administrative Services	
	, itoopoiloibility.	Dodi o / tariningtrative dervices	

Date Approved:

AP 3410 NONDISCRIMINATION

References:

Education Code Sections 200 et seq., 66250 et seq., and 72010 et seq.;

Penal Code Sections 422.55 et seq;

Government Code Sections 11135 et seq. and 12940 et seq.;

Title 5 Sections 53000 et seq. and 59300 et seq.;

ACCJC Accreditation Standard II.B.2.c

The District shall provide access to its services, classes and programs without regard to, national origin, religion, age, sex or gender, race, color, medical condition, ancestry, sexual orientation, marital status, physical or mental disability, or because he or she is perceived to have one or more of the foregoing characteristics, or based on association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

All courses, including noncredit classes, shall be conducted without regard to the gender of the student enrolled in the classes. As defined in the Penal Code, "gender" means sex, and includes a person's gender identity and gender-related appearance and behavior whether or not stereotypically associated with the person's assigned sex at birth.

The District shall not prohibit any student from enrolling in any class or course on the basis of gender.

Academic staff, including but not limited to counselors, instructors and administrators shall not offer program guidance to students which differs on the basis of gender.

Insofar as practicable, the District shall offer opportunities for participation in athletics equally to male and female students.

Employment

References:

Education Code Sections 87100 et seg.;

Title 5 Sections 53000 et seq.;

Government Code Sections 11135 et seg. and 12940 et seg.

The District shall provide equal employment opportunities to all applicants and employees regardless of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, age, sexual orientation, or status as a Vietnam-era veteran.

All employment decisions, including but not limited to hiring, retention, assignment, transfer, evaluation, dismissal, compensation, and advancement for all position classifications shall be based on job-related criteria as well as be responsive to the District's needs.

The District shall from time to time as necessary provide professional and staff development activities and training to promote understanding of diversity.

Protection Against Retaliation

The District prohibits the unlawful retaliation against someone who files an unlawful discrimination complaint, who refers a matter for investigation or complaint, who participates in investigation of a complaint, who represents or serves as an advocate for an alleged victim or alleged offender, or who otherwise furthers the principles of this unlawful discrimination policy. (See AP 3435 titled Discrimination and Harassment Investigations)

Employees, students, or other persons acting on behalf of the District who engage in unlawful discrimination as defined in <u>BP 3410 titled Nondiscrimination</u> or by state or federal law may be subject to discipline, up to and including discharge, expulsion or termination of contract.

Complaints of discrimination by students and staff shall be referred to the District's complaint resolution procedures which are available in the District's Human Resources Office, the Office of the Superintendent/President and the Office of the Vice President of Student Services.

Copies of BP/AP 3410 titled Nondiscrimination, BP/AP 3420 titled Equal Employment Opportunity, BP/AP 3430 titled Prohibition of Harassment, and AP 3435 titled Discrimination and Harassment Investigations as well as the complaint resolution procedures on unlawful discrimination will be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building or other areas where notices regarding the District's rules, regulations, procedures and standards of conduct are posted.

Also see BP/AP 3420 titled	Equal Employment	Opportunity a	nd BP/AP	3430 titled
Prohibition of Harassment				

	Office of Primar	y Responsibilit	v: Superintende	ent/President
--	------------------	-----------------	-----------------	---------------

NOTE: The **red type** signifies **legally required** language recommended from the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The language in **black type** is current Lassen College Policy 5011/5012 titled Non-Discrimination – Student Personnel adopted on 1/13/04 and revised on 6/27/06. The information in **blue type** is additional language to consider including in this procedure.

Date Approved:

AP 3430 PROHIBITION OF HARASSMENT

References:

Education Code Sections 212.5, 44100, and 66281.5;

Title 5 Sections 59320 et seq.;

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964;

42 U.S. Code Section 2000e;

Title IX Education Amendments of 1972

The District is committed to providing an academic and work environment free of unlawful harassment. This procedure defines sexual harassment and other forms of harassment on campus, and sets forth a procedure for the investigation and resolution of complaints of harassment by or against any staff or faculty member or student within the District.

Definitions

General Harassment – Harassment based on race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, age, or sexual orientation of any person, or the perception that a person has one or more of these characteristics is illegal and violates District policy. Gender-based harassment does not necessarily involve conduct that is sexual. Any hostile or offensive conduct based on gender can constitute prohibited harassment. For example, repeated derisive comments about a person's competency to do the job, when based on that person's gender, could constitute gender-based harassment. Harassment comes in many forms, including but not limited to the following conduct:

- Verbal: Inappropriate or offensive remarks, slurs, jokes or innuendoes based on a person's race gender, sexual orientation, or other protected status. This may include, but is not limited to, inappropriate comments regarding an individual's body, physical appearance, attire, sexual prowess, marital status, or sexual orientation; unwelcome flirting or propositions; demands for sexual favors; verbal abuse, threats or intimidation; or sexist, patronizing, or ridiculing statements that convey derogatory attitudes based on gender, race nationality, sexual orientation or other protected status.
- Physical: Inappropriate or offensive touching, assault, or physical interference with free movement. This may include, but is not limited to, kissing, patting, lingering, or intimate touches, grabbing, pinching, leering, staring, unnecessarily brushing against or blocking another person, whistling or sexual gestures. It also includes any physical assault or intimidation directed at an individual due to that person's gender, race, national origin, sexual orientation, or other protected status.

- Visual or Written: The display or circulation of visual or written material that degrades an individual or group based on gender, race, nationality, sexual orientation, or other protected status. This may include, but is not limited to, posters, cartoons, drawings, graffiti, reading materials, computer graphics, or electronic media transmissions.
- Environmental: A hostile academic or work environment exists where it is permeated by sexual innuendo; insults or abusive comments directed at an individual or group based on gender, race, nationality, sexual orientation, or other protected status; or gratuitous comments regarding gender, race, sexual orientation, or other protected status that are not relevant to the subject matter of the class or activities on the job. A hostile environment can arise from an unwarranted focus on sexual topics or sexually suggestive statements in the classroom or work environment. It can also be created by an unwarranted focus on, or stereotyping of, particular racial or ethnic groups, sexual orientations, genders or other protected statuses. An environment may also be hostile toward anyone who merely witnesses unlawful harassment in his/her immediate surroundings, although the conduct is directed at others. The determination of whether an environment is hostile is based on the totality of the circumstances, including such factors as the frequency of the conduct, the severity of the conduct, whether the conduct is humiliating or physically threatening, and whether the conduct unreasonably interferes with an individual's learning or work.

<u>Sexual Harassment</u> – In addition to the above, sexual harassment consists of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other conduct of a sexual nature when:

- <u>submission to the conduct is made a term or condition of an individual's</u> employment, academic status, or progress;
- <u>submission to, or rejection of, the conduct by the individual is used as a basis of</u> employment or academic decisions affecting the individual:
- the conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact upon the individual's work or academic performance, or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work or educational environment; or
- <u>submission to, or rejection of, the conduct by the individual is used as the basis</u> <u>for any decision affecting the individual regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or activities available at or through the community college.</u>

This definition encompasses two kinds of sexual harassment:

"Quid pro quo" sexual harassment occurs when a person in a position of authority makes educational or employment benefits conditional upon an individual's willingness to engage in or tolerate unwanted sexual conduct.

"Hostile environment" sexual harassment occurs when unwelcome conduct based on a person's gender is sufficiently severe or pervasive so as to alter the conditions of an individual's learning or work environment, unreasonably interfere with an individual's academic or work performance, or create an intimidating, hostile, or abusive learning or work environment. The victim must subjectively perceive the environment as hostile,

and the harassment must be such that a reasonable person of the same gender would perceive the environment as hostile.

Sexually harassing conduct can occur between people of the same or different genders. The standard for determining whether conduct constitutes sexual harassment is whether a reasonable person of the same gender as the victim would perceive the conduct as harassment based on sex.

Examples: Harassment includes, but is not limited to the following misconduct:

- Verbal: Inappropriate or offensive remarks, slurs, jokes, or innuendoes based on a person's protected status, including but not limited to sex. This may include, but is not limited to, inappropriate comments regarding an individual's body, physical appearance, attire, sexual prowess, marital status, or sexual orientation; unwelcome flirting or propositions; demands for sexual favors; verbal abuse, threats or intimidation of a sexual nature; or sexist, patronizing, or ridiculing statements that convey derogatory attitudes about a particular gender.
- Physical: Inappropriate or offensive touching, assault, or physical interference with free movement. This may include, but is not limited to, kissing, patting, lingering, or intimate touches, grabbing, pinching, leering, staring, unnecessarily brushing against or blocking another person, whistling, or sexual gestures.
- Visual or Written: The display or circulation of offensive sexually oriented or other discriminatory visual or written material. This may include, but is not limited to, posters, cartoons, drawings, graffiti, reading materials, computer graphics, or electronic media transmissions.
- Environmental: An academic or work environment that is permeated with racially or sexually-oriented talk, innuendo, insults, or abuse not relevant to the subject matter of the class or activities on the job. A hostile environment can arise from an unwarranted focus on sexual topics or sexually suggestive statements in the classroom or work environment. An environment may be hostile if unwelcome sexual behavior or other harassing behavior based on a protected status is directed specifically at an individual or if the individual merely witnesses unlawful harassment in his/her immediate surroundings. The determination of whether an environment is hostile is based on the totality of the circumstances, including such factors as the frequency of the conduct, the severity of the conduct, whether the conduct is humiliating or physically threatening, and whether the conduct unreasonably interferes with an individual's learning or work.

Consensual Relationships

Romantic or sexual relationships between supervisors and employees, or between administrators, faculty, or staff members and students are discouraged. There is an inherent imbalance of power and potential for exploitation in such relationships. A conflict of interest may arise if the administrator, faculty, or staff member must evaluate the student's or employee's work or make decisions affecting the employee or student. The relationship may create an appearance of impropriety and lead to charges of favoritism by other students or employees. A consensual sexual relationship may change, with the result that sexual conduct that was once welcome becomes

unwelcome and harassing. In the event that such relationships do occur, the District has the authority to transfer any involved employee to eliminate or attenuate the supervisory authority of one over the other, or of a teacher over a student. Such action by the District is a proactive and preventive measure to avoid possible charges of harassment and does not constitute discipline against any affected employee.

Academic Freedom

To the extent the harassment policies and procedures are in conflict with the District's policy on academic freedom, the harassment policies and procedures shall prevail. If the faculty member wishes to use sexually explicit materials in the classroom as a teaching technique, the faculty member must review that use with an administrator to determine whether or not this violates the sexual harassment policy.

 Office of Primar	y Responsibility:	_Superintendent/President_	

NOTE: This procedure is **legally required**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

AP 3435 DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT INVESTIGATIONS

References:

Education Code Section 66281.5;
Government Code Section 12950.1;
Title 5 Sections 59320, 59324, 59326, 59328, and 59300 et seq.;
34 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) Section 106.8(b)

These are the written procedures for filing and processing complaints of unlawful discrimination at Lassen Community College District. These procedures incorporate the legal principles contained in the non-discrimination policy of the district as well as the California Code of Regulations, Title 5, sections 59300 et seq., as well as other state and federal laws.

Filing a Timely Complaint

Since failure to report harassment and discrimination impedes the District's ability to stop the behavior, the District strongly encourages employees and students who believe they are being harassed or discriminated against, to file a complaint. The District also strongly encourages the filing of such complaints within 30 days of the alleged incident. While all complaints are taken seriously and will be investigated promptly, delay in filing impedes the District's ability to investigate and remediate.

All supervisors and managers have a mandatory duty to report incidents of harassment and discrimination; the existence of a hostile, offensive or intimidating work environment, and acts of retaliation.

Communicating that the Conduct is Unwelcome

The District further encourages students and staff members to let the offending person know immediately and firmly that the conduct or behavior is unwelcome, offensive, in poor taste and/or inappropriate.

Oversight of Complaint Procedure

Designated Officer

The Lassen Community College District has identified the Equal Opportunity Coordinator or designee ("COORDINATOR/designee") to the State Chancellor's Office and to the public as the single District officer responsible for receiving all unlawful discrimination complaints filed pursuant to and for coordinating their investigation. The actual investigation of complaints may be assigned to other staff or to outside persons or organizations under contract with the District. Such delegation procedures will be used whenever the COORDINATOR/designee or President/Superintendent is named in the complaint or is implicated by the allegations in the complaint.

Administrators, faculty members, other District employees and students shall direct all complaints of unlawful discrimination to the COORDINATOR/designee.

The actual investigation of complaints may be assigned by the designated officer to other staff members or to outside persons or organizations under contract with the District. This shall occur whenever the designated officer is named in the complaint or implicated by the allegations in the complaint.

Definitions

The following definitions are applicable to this nondiscrimination regulation:

- 1. "Appeal" means a written request by a complainant made in writing to the Lassen Community College District Board of Trustees, and/or to the State Chancellor's Office, to review the administrative determination of the District regarding a complaint of discrimination.
- 2. "Complaint" means a written and signed statement alleging wrongful discrimination.
- 3. "Days" means calendar days.
- "District" means any Lassen Community College District program or activity that is funded directly by the state or received financial assistance from the state or federal government.
- 5. "Mental disability" includes, but is not limited to, all of the following:
 - a. Having any mental or psychological disorder or condition, such as mental retardation, organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, or specific learning disabilities, that limits a major life activity.
 - b. "Mental disability" does not include sexual behavior disorders, compulsive gambling, kleptomania, pyromania, or psychoactive substance abuse disorders resulting from the current unlawful use of controlled substances or other drugs.
- 6. "Physical disability" includes, but is not limited to, all of the following:
 - a. Having any physiological disease, disorder, condition, cosmetic disfigurement, or anatomical loss that does both of the following:
 - i. Having one or more of the following body systems: neurological, immunological, musculoskeletal, special sense organs, respiratory, including speech organs, cardiovascular, reproductive, digestive, genitourinary, hemic and lymphatic, skin, and endocrine.
 - ii. Limits a major life activity.
 - b. Any other health impairment not described in paragraph "a" that requires specialized support services.
 - c. Having a record or history of a disease, disorder, condition, cosmetic disfigurement, anatomical loss, or health impairment described in paragraph "a" or "b", which is known to the District.
 - d. Being regarded or treated by the district as having, or having had, any physical condition that makes achievement of a major life activity difficult.
 - e. Being regarded or treated by the District as having, or having had, a disease, disorder, condition, cosmetic disfigurement, anatomical loss, or health

- impairment that has no present disabling effect but may become a physical disability as described in paragraph "a" or "b".
- f. "Physical disability" does not include sexual behavior disorders, compulsive gambling, kleptomania, pyromania, or psychoactive substance use disorders resulting from the current unlawful use of controlled substances or other drugs.
- 7. "Sexual harassment" is unlawful discrimination in the form of unwelcome sexual advances, request for sexual favors, and other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature, made by someone from or in the workplace or in the educational setting, and includes but is not limited to:
 - a. Making unsolicited written, verbal, physical, and/or visual contacts with sexual overtones. (Examples of possible sexual harassment that appear in written form include, but are not limited to: suggestive or obscene letters, notes, and invitations. Examples of possible visual sexual harassment include, but are not limited to: leering, gestures, display of sexually aggressive objects or pictures, cartoons, or posters.)
 - b. Continuing to express sexual interest after being informed that the interest is unwelcome.
 - c. Making reprisals, threats of reprisal, or implied threats of reprisal following a rebuff of harassing behavior. The following are examples of conduct in an academic environment that might be found to be sexual harassment: implying or actually withholding grades earned or deserved; suggesting a poor performance evaluation will be prepared; or suggesting a scholarship recommendation or college application will be denied.
 - d. Engaging in explicit or implicit coercive sexual behavior within the work environment which is used to control, influence, or affect the employee's career, salary, and/or work environment.
 - e. Engaging in explicit or implicit coercive sexual behavior within the educational environment that is used to control, influence, or affect the educational opportunities, grades, and/or learning environment of a student.
 - f. Offering favors or educational or employment benefits, such as grades or promotions, favorable performance evaluations, favorable assignments, favorable duties or shifts, recommendations, reclassifications, etc., in exchange for sexual favors.
- 8. "Unlawful discrimination" means any complaint of unlawful discrimination based on a category protected by state of federal law, including sexual harassment and retaliation.

Informal Complaint Procedure

When a person brings charges of unlawful discrimination, the COORDINATOR/designee is to take the following steps:

- 1. Undertake efforts to informally resolve the charges;
- 2. Advise the complainant that he/ or she need not participate in informal resolution;
- 3. Notify the person bringing the charges of his of her right to file a formal complaint and explain the procedure for doing so;
- 4. Assure the complaint that he or she will not be required to confront or work out problems with the person accused of unlawful discrimination;

5. If the complaint is employment related the complainant should also be advised that he or she may file a complaint with the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and/or the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) where such a complaint is with the agency's jurisdiction.

Efforts at informal resolution need not include any investigation unless the COORDINATOR/designee determines that investigation is warranted by the seriousness of the charges. Selecting an informal resolution does not extend the time limitations for filing a formal complaint. Efforts at informal resolution may continue after the filing of a formal written complaint. However, any effort at informal resolution after the filing of written complaint will not extend or exceed the 90-day period for rendering the administrative determination as set forth more fully below.

In employment-related cases if the complainant files with the Department of Fair Employment and Housing, a copy of that filing will be sent to the State Chancellor's Office requesting a determination of whether a further investigation is required. Unless the State Chancellor's Office determines that a separate investigation is required, the District will discontinue its investigation and the matter will be resolved through the DFEH.

FORMAL WRITTEN COMPLAINT Approved Form

If a complainant decides to file a formal written unlawful discrimination complaint against the District, he or she must file the complaint on a form prescribed by the State Chancellor. These approved forms are available from the district and also at the State Chancellor's website, as follows:

http://www.cccco.edu/divisions/legal/Discrimination/discrimination.htm

The completed form must be filed with the COORDINATOR/designee or mailed directly to the State Chancellor's Office.

Minimum Requirements for Filing Formal Written Complaint

When a formal written complaint is filed it will be reviewed by the COORDINATOR/designee to determine if the complaint meets the following requirements:

- The complaint must be filed on a form prescribed by the State Chancellor's Office
- The complaint must allege unlawful discrimination as prohibited by the District's Non-discrimination policy
- The complaint must be filed by one who alleges that he/she has personally suffered unlawful discrimination or by one who has learned of such unlawful discrimination in his/her official capacity as a faculty or staff member or administrator.
- In any complaint alleging discrimination in employment, the complaint shall be filed within 180 days of the date the alleged unlawful discrimination occurred, except that this period will extended by no more than 90 days following the expiration of 180 days if the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged violation after the expiration of 180 days.

If the complaint is defective the COORDINATOR/designee will be immediately return it to the complainant with a complete explanation in writing of why an investigation could not be initiated. [Title 5 Cal. Code of Regs. § 59328]

Notice to Accused

Once a complaint is filed the individual(s) accused of engaging in prohibited discriminatory conduct will be advised in writing by the COORDINATOR/designee of the filing of and general nature of the complaint. This will occur as soon as possible and appropriate under the circumstances. The COORDINATOR/designee will also advise the accused that an assessment of the accuracy of the allegations has not yet been made, that the complaint will be investigated, that the accused will be provided an opportunity to present his/her side of the matter, and that any conduct that could be viewed as retaliatory against the complainant or any witnesses must be avoided.

Confidentiality

Investigations will be conducted in a confidential manner. If a complainant insists that his her name not be revealed, reasonable steps will be made to investigate and respond to the complainant consistent with the complainant's request so long as it does not jeopardize the rights of other students or employees. However, complainants must understand that the persons who are accused of wrong doing have a right to present their side of the matter, and this right may be jeopardized if the District is prohibited from revealing the name of the complainant or facts that are likely to disclose the identity of the complainant.

Investigation of Formal Complaint

The District recognizes the importance of and is therefore committed to completing investigations and resolving complaints as quickly as possible consistent with the requirements for a thorough investigation. No claim of workplace or academic harassment or discrimination shall remain unexamined. As set forth above, where the complainant opts for an informal resolution, the COORDINATOR/designee may limit the scope of the investigation, as appropriate. The District will keep the investigation confidential to the extent possible, but cannot guarantee absolute confidentiality because release of some information on a "need-to-know-basis" is essential to a thorough investigation.

The District will undertake its investigation promptly and swiftly as possible. Therefore within 90 days of receiving an unlawful discrimination complaint, the COORDINATOR/designee officer will complete the investigation. As part of the investigation, the COORDINATOR/designee or designee will insure that all available witnesses with relevant information, including those identified by the complainant, are interviewed. All interviews will be documented.

All employees are expected to cooperate with a District investigation into allegations of harassment or discrimination. Lack of cooperation impedes the ability of the District to investigate thoroughly and respond effectively. However, lack of cooperation by a complainant or witnesses does not relieve the District of its obligation to investigate. The District will conduct an investigation if it is discovered that harassment is, or may be occurring, with or without the cooperation of the alleged victim(s) and regardless of whether a complaint is filed.

Upon completion of the investigation the COORDINATOR/designee will draft an investigation report that will include all information gathered as part of his/her investigation including documentation of interviews. The investigation report will include a determination of probable cause as to whether discrimination occurred as to each allegation, a description of any corrective action that will be taken including preventative action and a proposed resolution. A copy of the investigation report will be provided to the Superintendent/President.

The complainant and the accused will be provided a summary of the investigation report.

The summary will include the following information:

- The determination of the COORDINATOR/designee or his/her designee as to whether there is probably cause to believe discrimination occurred with respect to each allegation in the complaint;
- A description of actions taken, if any, to prevent similar problems from occurring in the future:
- The proposed resolution of the complaint; and
- The complainant's right to appeal to the District Board of Trustees and the State Chancellor.

A copy of the report or summary will also be forwarded to the State Chancellor's Oeffice.

Discipline and Corrective Action

If harassment, discrimination and/or retaliation occurred in violation of the policy or procedure, the District shall take disciplinary action against the accused and any other remedial action it determines to be appropriate. The action will be prompt, effective, and commensurate with the severity of the offense. If discipline is imposed, the nature of the discipline will not be communicated to the complainant.

<u>Disciplinary actions against faculty, staff, and students will conform to all relevant statutes, regulations, personnel policies and procedures, including the provisions of any applicable collective bargaining agreement.</u>

The District shall also take reasonable steps to protect the complainant from further harassment, and/or discrimination, and to protect the complainant and witnesses from retaliation as a result of communicating the complaint and/or assisting in the investigation. The District shall take reasonable steps to ensure the confidentiality of the investigation and to protect the privacy of all parties to the extent possible without impeding the District's ability to investigate and respond effectively to the complaint.

Appeal Rights

An appeal means a request by the complainant made in writing to the Board of Trustees and/or to the State Chancellor's Office to review the administrative determination of the District. The Complainant is encouraged to provide all reasons/facts upon which the complainant believes the original determination by the District is incorrect.

Level 1: The complainant has the right to file an appeal to the District Board of Trustees within 15 days from the date of the administrative determination. The District's

Board of Trustees will review the original complaint, the investigative report, the administrative determination and the appeal.

The Board of Trustees will issue a final decision in the matter within 45 days after receiving the appeal. Alternatively, the Board of Trustees may elect to take no action within 45 days, in which case the original administrative determination will be deemed to be affirmed and shall become the final decision in the matter. A copy of the final decision rendered by the District's Board of Trustees will be forwarded to the complainant and the State Chancellor's Office.

Level 2: The complainant has the right to file an appeal with the <u>State</u> Chancellor's Office in any case not involving employment-related discrimination within 30 days from the date that the Board of Trustees issues the final District decision. The appeal must be accompanied by a copy of the decision of the Board of Trustees; or, if no response was received from the Board of Trustees, then evidence showing the date on which the complainant filed an appeal with the Board of Trustees, and a statement under penalty of perjury that no response was received from the Board of Trustees within 45 days from that date.

Dissemination of Policy and Procedures

<u>District Policy and Procedures related to harassment will be provided to all students, faculty members, members of the administrative staff, and members of the support staff and will be posted on campus.</u>

When hired, employees are required to sign that they have received the policy and procedures, and the signed acknowledgment of receipt is placed in each employee's personnel file. In addition, these policies and procedures are incorporated into the District's Catalog, Schedule of Classes, and orientation materials for new students.

Training

By January 1, 2006, the District shall provide at least two hours of classroom or other effective interactive training and education regarding sexual harassment to all supervisory employees who are employed as of July 1, 2005. All new supervisory employees must be provided with the training and education within six months of their assumption of a supervisory position. After January 1, 2006, the District shall provide sexual harassment training and education to each supervisory employee once every two years.

The training and education required by this procedure shall include information and practical guidance regarding the federal and state statutory provisions concerning the prohibition against and the prevention and correction of sexual harassment and the remedies available to victims of sexual harassment in employment. The training and education shall also include practical examples aimed at instructing supervisors in the prevention of harassment, discrimination, and retaliation, and shall be presented by trainers or educators with knowledge and expertise in the prevention of harassment, discrimination, and retaliation.

<u>Training of all staff will be conducted. Training for academic staff should emphasize environmental harassment in the classroom.</u>

In years in which a substantive policy or procedural change has occurred, all District employees will attend a training update and/or receive a copy of the revised policies and procedures.

A training program or informational services will be made available to all students at least once annually. The student training or informational services shall include an explanation of the policy, how it works, and how to file a complaint.

Participants in training programs will be required to sign a statement that they have either understood the policies and procedures, their responsibilities, and their own and the district's potential liability, or that they did not understand the policy and desire further training.

Office of Primary Responsibility: _Superintendent/President

NOTE: This procedure is **legally required**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The language in **black type** is current Lassen College Policy 4011/4012 titled Non-Discrimination – Academic/Classified adopted on 10/03/89 (Formerly board Policy 2915, 4113.1 and 4012) and revised on 6/19/90, 10/20/92, 11/12/96, 5/09/00, 11/14/00, and 01/13/04. The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

(Replaces current Lassen College Policy 4011/4012)

AP 3500 CAMPUS SAFETY

References:

Education Code Sections 212, 67380, and 87014:

Penal Code Section 245:

20 U.S. Code Sections 1232g and 1292(f);

34 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) 668.46;

34 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) 99.31(a)(13) and (14);

Campus Security Act of 1990

A campus safety plan shall be developed and provided to students via the Campus Safety Procedures and Guidelines Brochure

The Director of Facilities prepares and annually updates a report of all occurrences reported to campus personnel of and arrests for crimes that are committed on campus and that involve violence, hate violence, theft or destruction of property, illegal drugs, or alcohol intoxication, and of all occurrences of noncriminal acts of hate violence reported to campus authorities. A written report will be submitted to the Board of Trustees.

Written records of noncriminal acts of hate violence shall include at least a description of the act of hate violence, the victim characteristics, and offender characteristics, if known.

Education Code Section 67380 defines "hate violence" as: "any act of intimidation or physical harassment, physical force or physical violence, or the threat of physical force or physical violence, that is directed against any person or group of persons or the property of any person or group of persons because of the ethnicity, race, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, disability, or political or religious beliefs of that person or group." Section 67380 requires reporting of both occurrences reported to campus police or safety authorities of and arrests for crimes that involve hate violence (Section 67380(a)(1)(A)) and of "non-criminal acts of hate violence" (Education Code Section 67380(a)(1)(B)).

Office of Primary Responsibility: _Dean of Administrative Services_

NOTE: This procedure is **legally required**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

CC League and the League's legal counsel)

AP 3510 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PLAN

References:

Penal Code Sections 273.6, 626.9, 626.10, and 12021;

Cal/OSHA; Labor Code Sections 6300 et seq.;

Title 8, Section 3203;

Code of Civil Procedure Section 527.8

The District is committed to providing a safe work environment that is free of violence and the threat of violence.

Responding to Threats of Violence

The top priority in this process is effectively handling critical workplace incidents, especially those dealing with actual or potential violence.

<u>Violence or the threat of violence against or by any employee of the District or any other person is unacceptable.</u>

Should a non-employee on District property demonstrate or threaten violent behavior, he/she may be subject to criminal prosecution.

Should an employee, during working hours, demonstrate or threaten violent behavior he/she may be subject to disciplinary action.

The following actions are considered violent acts:

- Striking, punching, slapping or assaulting another person.
- Fighting or challenging another person to fight.
- Grabbing, pinching or touching another person in an unwanted way whether sexually or otherwise.
- Engaging in dangerous, threatening or unwanted horseplay.
- Possession, use, or threat of use, of a firearm, knife, explosive or other dangerous object, including but not limited to any facsimile firearm, knife or explosive, on District property, including parking lots, other exterior premises, District vehicles, or while engaged in activities for the District in other locations, unless such possession or use is a requirement of the job.

- Threatening harm or harming another person, or any other action or conduct that implies the threat of bodily harm.
- Bringing or possessing any dirk, dagger, ice pick, or knife having a fixed blade longer than 2½ inches upon the grounds, unless the person is authorized to possess such a weapon in the course of his/her employment, has been authorized by a District employee to have the knife, or is a duly appointed peace officer who is engaged in the performance of his/her duties.

Any employee who is the victim of any violent threatening or harassing conduct, any witness to such conduct, or anyone receiving a report of such conduct, whether the perpetrator is a District employee or a non-employee, shall immediately report the incident to his/her supervisor or other appropriate person.

Susanville Emergency Services	911 (or *9911 from campus phone)
Superintendent/President	530.257.8820
Dean of Administrative Services	<u>251.8826</u>
Director of Facilities	530.251.8878 or 530.310-0487
Dean of Student Services	251.8841
Dean of Academic Services	251.8836
Lassen County Sheriff's Office	911/530.257.6121
California Highway patrol	911/530.257.2191
Lassen Ambulance	911/530.257.2444

No one, acting in good faith, who initiates a complaint or reports an incident under this policy will be subject to retaliation or harassment.

Any employee reported to be a perpetrator will be provided both due process and representation before disciplinary action is taken.

In the event the District fears for the safety of the perpetrator or the safety of others at the scene of the violent act, the Susanville Police will be called.

Office of Primary Responsibility: _Superintendent/President

NOTE: This procedure is **legally required**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

AP 3515 REPORTING OF CRIMES

References:

Education Code Sections 212 and 87014;

Penal Code Section 245;

<u>Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics</u>
<u>Act of 1998;</u>

20 U.S. Code Section 1232g;

34 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) 99.31(a)(13)(14) and 668.46;

Campus Security Act of 1990

<u>District employees, students, and visitors who are witnesses or victims of a crime should immediately report the crime to the appropriate law enforcement authorities.</u>

In the event an employee is assaulted, attacked, or menaced by a student, the employee shall notify his/her supervisor as soon as practical after the incident. The supervisor of any employee who is attacked, assaulted, or menaced shall assist the employee to promptly report the attack or assault to the appropriate law enforcement authorities. The supervisor himself/herself shall make the report if the employee is unable or unwilling to do so.

The District shall publish warnings to the campus community about crimes that are considered to represent a continuing threat to other students and employees in a manner that is timely and will aid in the prevention of similar crimes. The information shall be disseminated by the Director of Facilities in a manner that aids the prevention of similar crimes.

The District shall annually collect and distribute statistics concerns crimes on campus. All District employees with significant responsibility for student and campus activities shall report crimes about which they receive information.

The District shall publish an Annual Security Report every year by October 1 that contains statistics regarding crimes committed on campus and at affiliated locations for the previous three years. The Annual Security Report shall also include policies pertaining to campus security, alcohol and drug use, crime prevention, the reporting of crimes, sexual assault, victims' assistance program, student discipline, campus resources and other matters. The District shall make the report available to all current students and employees. The District will also provide perspective students and employees with a copy of the Annual Security Report upon request. A copy of the Annual Security Report can be obtained by contacting the Director of Facilities or at the website address published in the College Catalog or Class Schedule or at http://www.lassencollege.edu/about_documents.html

The District may disclose the final results of disciplinary proceeding to a victim of an alleged perpetrator of a crime of violence or a non-forcible sex offense, regardless of the outcome. The District may also disclose to anyone, the final results of a disciplinary proceeding in which it concludes that a student violated school policy with respect to a crime of violence or non-forcible sex offense. The offenses that apply to this permissible disclosure are:

- Arson;
- Assault offenses;
- Burglary;
- Criminal homicide manslaughter by negligence;
- Criminal homicide murder and non-negligent manslaughter;
- <u>Destruction</u>, <u>damage</u>, <u>or vandalism of property</u>;
- Kidnapping or abduction;
- Robbery;
- Forcible sex offenses.

The disclosure may only include the final result of the disciplinary proceeding with respect to the alleged criminal offense. The District shall not disclose the name of any other student, including a victim or witness, unless the victim or witness has waived his/her right to confidentiality.

Office of Primary Responsibility: _Dean of Administrative Services_

NOTE: This procedure is **legally required**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

AP 3516 REGISTERED SEX OFFENDER INFORMATION

References:

Penal Code Sections 290, 290.01, and 290.95; 34 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) 668; Campus Sex Crimes Prevention Act 42 U.S. Code Section 14071j; 20 U.S. Code Sections 1092(f)(1)(I) and 1232g(b)(7)(A)

The District shall include in its Annual Security Report a statement advising the campus community where information pertaining to registered sex offenders may be obtained.

Sex offenders are required to register with the police in the jurisdiction in which they reside and at institutions of higher learning if they are students there or if they work there as employees, contractors, or volunteers. A sex offender who is an employee or volunteer in the District must disclose his/her status as a registrant upon his/her application or acceptance of the position if he/she:

- 1) would be working directly and in an unaccompanied setting with minor children on more than an incidental and occasional basis or have supervision or disciplinary power over minor children or
- 2) would be working directly and in an accompanied setting with minor children and his/her work would require touching minor children on more than an incidental basis.

A sex offender who must register for committing a crime against a minor victim under the age of 16 is prohibited from serving as an employer, employee, contractor, or volunteer in any capacity in which the sex offender would be working directly and in an unaccompanied setting with minor children on more than an incidental and occasional basis or involving having supervision or disciplinary power over minor children.

<u>Sex offenders who may be required to register should do so at the City of Susanville</u> Police Department 530.257.5603

Information concerning registered sex offenders can be obtained from the City of Susanville Police Department 530.257.5603

Office of Primary Responsibility: Superintendent/President

Date Approved:

AP 3540 SEXUAL AND OTHER ASSAULTS ON CAMPUS

References:

Education Code Section 67385; 20 U.S. Code Section 1092(f); 34 Code of Federal Regulations Section 668.46(b)(11)

Any sexual assault or physical abuse, including, but not limited to, rape, as defined by California law, whether committed by an employee, student, or member of the public, occurring on District property or on an off-campus site or facility maintained by the District or on grounds or facilities maintained by a student organization is a violation of District policies and regulations and is subject to all applicable punishment, including criminal procedures and employee or student discipline procedures. (Also see AP 5500 titled Standards of Student Conduct)

"Sexual assault" includes but is not limited to, rape, forced sodomy, forced oral copulation, rape by a foreign object, sexual battery, or threat of sexual assault.

These written procedures and protocols are designed to ensure victims of sexual assault receive treatment and information. (For physical assaults/violence, also see AP 3500 titled Campus Safety, AP 3510 titled Workplace Violence Plan, and AP 3515 Reporting of Crimes).

All students, faculty members, or staff members who allege they are the victims of a sexual assault on District property shall be provided with information regarding options and assistance available to them. Information shall be available from the Human Resources office, which shall maintain the identity and other information about alleged sexual assault victims as confidential unless and until the Dean of Administrative Services is authorized to release such information.

The Human Resources manager shall provide all alleged victims of sexual assault with the following, upon request:

- A copy of the District's policy and procedure regarding sexual assault
- A list of personnel on campus who should be notified of the assault and procedures for such notification, if the alleged victim consents
 Superintendent/President, Dean of Administrative Services, Dean of Academic Services, Dean of Student Services
- A description of available services and the persons on campus available to provide those services if requested. Services and those responsible for provided or arranging them include: [list person or office responsible after each item.]

- transportation to a hospital, if necessary
- counseling by **[designate]** or referral to a counseling center
- notice to the police, if desired and
- <u>a list of other available campus resources or appropriate off-campus</u> resources
- A description of each of the following procedures:
 - criminal prosecution
 - civil prosecution (i.e., lawsuit)
 - District disciplinary procedures, both student and employee
 - modification of class schedules and
 - tutoring, if necessary

All alleged victims of sexual assault on District property shall be kept informed, through the Human Resources office of any ongoing investigation. Information shall include the status of any student of employee disciplinary proceedings or appeal; alleged victims of sexual assault are required to maintain any such information in confidence, unless the alleged assailant has waived rights to confidentiality.

The District shall maintain the identity of any alleged victim or witness of sexual assault on District property, as defined above, in confidence unless the alleged victim or witness specifically waives that right to confidentiality. All inquiries from reporters or other media representatives about alleged sexual assaults on District property shall be referred to the District's Superintendent/President which shall work with the Human Resources office to assure that all confidentiality rights are maintained.

Additionally, the Annual Security Report will include a statement regarding the District's programs to prevent sex offenses and procedures that should be followed after a sex offense occurs. The statement must include the following:

- A description of educational programs to promote the awareness of rape, acquaintance rape, and other forcible and nonforcible sex offenses
- Procedures to follow if a sex offense occurs, including who should be contacted, the importance of preserving evidence to prove a criminal offense, and to whom the alleged offense should be reported
- Information on a student's option to notify appropriate law enforcement authorities, including on-campus and local police, and a statement that campus personnel will assist the student in notifying these authorities, if the student so requests
- <u>Information for students about existing on and off-campus counseling, mental</u> health, or other student services for victims of sex offenses
- Notice to students that the campus will change a victim's academic situation after an alleged sex offense and of the options for those changes, if those changes are requested by the victim and are reasonably available
- Procedures for campus disciplinary action in cases of an alleged sex offense, including a clear statement that:
 - The accuser and the accused are entitled to the same opportunities to have others present during a disciplinary proceeding and

- Both the accuser and the accused must be informed of the outcome of any institutional disciplinary proceeding resulting from an alleged sex offense. Compliance with this paragraph does not violate the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. For the purposes of this paragraph, the outcome of a disciplinary proceeding means the final determination with respect to the alleged sex offense and any sanction that is imposed against the accused
- A description of the sanctions the campus may impose following a final determination by a campus disciplinary proceeding regarding rape, acquaintance rape, or other forcible or nonforcible sex offenses

Education and Prevention Information

The Human Resources office shall:

- Provide, as part of each campus' established on-campus orientation program, education, and prevention information about sexual assault. The information shall be developed in collaboration with campus-based and community-based victim advocacy organizations.
- <u>Post sexual violence prevention and education information on the campus internet website</u>

Office of Primary Responsibility: <u>Superintendent/President</u>

NOTE: This procedure is **legally required**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

(This is a new procedure recommended by the CC League and the League's legal counsel)

Proposed Lassen Community College District Procedure

CCLC No. 3570

General Institution DRAFT as of 2/29/12

AP 3570 SMOKING ON CAMPUS

References:

Government Code Sections 7596, 7597, and 7598; Labor Code Section 6404.5; Title 8 Section 5148

Smoking is prohibited within 20 feet of a main exit, entrance, or operable window of any campus building.

Smoking is prohibited inside any indoor area of any campus building, except for covered parking lots and residential space.

"Covered parking lot" means an area designated for the parking of vehicles that is enclosed or contains a roof or ceiling, but does not include lobbies, lounges, waiting areas, stairwells, and restrooms that are a structural part of the parking lot or a building to which it is attached.

"Residential space" means a private living area, but does not include common areas such as lobbies, lounges, waiting areas, elevators, stairwells, and restrooms that are a structural part of a multi-complex building such as a dormitory.

Smoking is prohibited in any enclosed place of employment on campus, including lobbies, lounges, waiting areas, stairwells, and restrooms that are a structural part of any building that is a place of employment.

Office of Primary Responsibility: _Dean of Administrative Services_

NOTE: This procedure is **legally advised**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

CCLC No. 3710

General Institution DRAFT as of 2/29/12

AP 3710 SECURING OF COPYRIGHT

References:

Education Code Sections 72207 and 81459, 17 U.S. Code Section 201

The Governing Board may secure copyrights, in the name of the District, to all copyrightable works developed by the District, and royalties or revenue from these copyrights are to be for the benefit of the District.

Office of Primary Responsibility: Dean of Academic Services

NOTE: This procedure is **legally advised**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

AP 3715 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

References:

17 U.S. Code Sections 101 et seq.;

35 U.S. Code Sections 101 et seq.;

37 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) 1.1 et seq.

The intellectual property procedure shall be interpreted consistent with other District policies, including, but not limited to, the District's policy on academic freedom and federal and state statutes and regulations. This procedure shall also be interpreted consistent with all collective bargaining agreements.

Definitions

For the purposes of this procedure, the following definitions apply to the following words or phrases:

- "Administrative Activity" means the execution of the District's management or administrative functions such as preparing budgets, policies, contracts, personnel management, printing course materials and catalogues, maintenance of computer data, long range planning, and keeping inventories of equipment. Teaching and academic endeavors are not administrative activities.
- "Author" or "Creator" means an individual who alone or as part of a group of other creators, invent, author, discover, or otherwise create intellectual property.
- "District Resources" means all tangible resources including buildings, equipment, facilities, computers, software, personnel, and funding.
- "Course Materials" means materials prepared for use in teaching, fixed or unfixed, in any form, including, but not limited to, digital, print, audio, visual, or any combination thereof. Course materials include, but are not limited to, lectures, lecture notes, and materials, syllabi, study guides, bibliographies, visual aids, images, diagrams, multimedia presentations, web-ready content, and educational software.
- "Course Syllabus" means a document that includes information about the outline, standards for student evaluation, and additional information which reflects the academic work of the faculty member.
- "Digital Encoded Work" means a work (on a bit-sequence) that can be stored on computer-readable media, manipulated by computers, and transmitted through data networks.

- "Employee" means an individual employed by the District, and shall include full-time and part-time faculty, classified staff, student employees, appointed personnel, persons with "no salary" appointments, and academic professionals, who develop intellectual property using District resources, unless there is an agreement providing otherwise.
- "Intellectual Property" means works, products, processes, tangible research property, copyrightable subject matter, works of art, trade secrets, know how, inventions and other creations the ownership which are recognized and protected from unauthorized exploitation by law. Examples of intellectual property include scholarly, artistic, and instructional materials.
- "Student" means an individual who was or is enrolled in a class or program at the District at the time the intellectual property was created.
- "Student Employee" means a student who is paid by the District, and may include students participating in a work study program or who receive stipends while they are acting within the scope of their employment at the District at the time the intellectual property was created.
- "Substantial Use of District Resources" means use of District resources beyond the normal professional, technology, and technical support generally provided by the District and extended to an individual or individuals for development of a product, project, or program. The use of District resources must be important and instrumental to the creation of the intellectual property. The following do not constitute substantial use of the District's resources:
 - 1) incidental use of District resources and/or
 - 2) extensive use of District resources commonly available to District employees.

A substantial use of the District's resources may be implicated in situations where the creator spends such time and energy in the creation of a work that results in a great reduction of the creator's teaching activity.

"Work" means an "original work of authorship fixed in a tangible medium" as used in the Copyright Act.

Ownership of Intellectual Property

The ownership rights to a creation at the District shall be determined generally as set forth below, unless ownership is modified by an agreement.

Employee Intellectual Property Rights – A District employee who is the creator of an academic work in his/her field of expertise owns the copyright in that work. Academic works include textbooks, lecture notes and other course materials, literary works, artistic works, musical works, architectural works and software produced with no more than nominal or incidental use of the District's resources. Academic works described in this paragraph are owned by the employee even though such works may have been developed within the employee's scope of employment.

Intellectual property unrelated to an individual's employment responsibilities at the District, and that is developed on an individual's own time and without the District's support or use of District facilities is the exclusive property of the creator and the District

has no interest in any such property and holds no claim to any profits resulting from such intellectual property.

<u>District Intellectual Property Rights</u> – The District owns all other intellectual property, including but not limited to patentable inventions, such as computer software, created by its employees under the following circumstances:

- 1) <u>If intellectual property is created through the District's administrative activities by</u> an employee working within his/her scope of employment; or
- 2) <u>If intellectual property is created by an employee executing a duty or specific</u> assignment designated by the District; or
- 3) <u>If intellectual property is created through the substantial use of District resources;</u> or
- 4) <u>If intellectual property is commissioned by the District pursuant to a signed contract;</u> or
- 5) <u>If intellectual property is produced within one of the nine categories of works</u> considered works for hire under copyright law pursuant to a written contract, or
- 6) <u>If intellectual property is produced from research specifically supported by state or federal funds or third party sponsorship.</u>

Where circumstances give rise to District intellectual property rights, as described above, the creator of the potential intellectual property will promptly disclose the intellectual property to the District. The District and the creator may enter into a written agreement whereby the creator executes documents assigning intellectual property rights to the District.

The Superintendent/President may waive the District's interests in its intellectual property by executing a written waiver.

<u>Student Intellectual Property Rights</u> – District students who created a work are owners of and have intellectual property rights in that work. District students own the intellectual property rights in the following works created while they are students at the District:

- 1) <u>intellectual property created to meet course requirements using college or District resources, and</u>
- 2) intellectual property created using resources available to the public.

Intellectual property works created by students while acting as District employees shall be governed under provisions for employees.

Modification of Ownership Rights

The general provisions for ownership of intellectual property rights set forth in Section II may be modified by the parties as follows:

<u>Sabbatical Works</u> – Generally, intellectual property created by District employees during a sabbatical is defined as an academic work. However, where a work to be created as part of an approved sabbatical plan requires resources beyond those normally provided to other employees during a sabbatical (substantial use District resources), the parties may enter into an written agreement to define the District and employee's intellectual property rights in the sabbatical work.

Assignment of Rights – When the conditions outlined in the sections on employee intellectual property rights or student intellectual property are met, ownership will reside with the employee or student responsible for creating the intellectual property. In these circumstances, the creator may pursue intellectual property protection, marketing, and licensing activities without involving the District. If such a decision is made, the creator is entitled to all revenues received.

Any person may agree to assign some or all of his/her intellectual property rights to the District. In the event the creator offers to share or assign intellectual property rights in the creation to the District, the District may support and finance application for intellectual property protection (trademark, patent, or copyright) or it may enter into an agreement for other exploitation of the work, including management, development and commercialization of the property under terms and conditions as may be agreeable to the parties. After evaluating the creator's offer, the District may or may not decide to become involved in a joint investment agreement. A negative response from the District will be communicated in writing to the creator. An affirmative response from the District will be summarized as a offer to enter into a written contract. If the creator accepts the District's proposed contract, any revenues received from commercialization of the intellectual property will be distributed as defined in the contract.

Sponsorship Agreements – A sponsored work is a work first produced by or through the District in the performance of a written agreement between the District and a sponsor. Sponsored works generally include interim and final technical reports, software, and other works first created in the performance of a sponsored agreement. Sponsored works do not include journal articles, lectures, books or other copyrighted works created through independent academic effort and based on the findings of the sponsored project, unless the sponsored agreement states otherwise. Ownership of copyrights to sponsored works shall be with the District unless the sponsored agreement states otherwise. Where a sponsorship agreement does not define ownership of the intellectual property, ownership shall be determined under applicable law. Any sponsorship agreement that provides for ownership of the work by one other than the District generally shall provide the District with a nonexclusive, world-wide license to use and reproduce the copyrighted work for education and research purposes.

<u>Collaboration/Partnership Agreements</u> – The District may participate in projects with persons/organizations that result in the creation of intellectual property. Ownership rights of such intellectual property will be defined by the collaboration/partnership agreement, or shall be determined under applicable law.

Special Commissions – Intellectual property rights to a work specially ordered or commissioned by the District from a faculty member, professional staff member, other District employee, or other individual or entity, and identified by the District, as a specially commissioned work at the time the work was commissioned, shall belong to the District. The District, and the employee shall enter into a written agreement for creation of the specially commissioned work.

<u>Use of Substantial District Resources</u> – In the event the District provides substantial resources to an employee for creation of a work and the work was not created under an agreement (such as a sponsorship agreement, individual agreement, or special

commission) the District and the creator shall own the intellectual property rights jointly in proportion to the respective contributions made.

Encoded Works/Software for Administrative Activities – The District may hire an individual or entity to develop software or other encoded works, to be used in the District's administrative activities. The District shall maintain ownership of the intellectual property rights in such encoded works. Similarly, the District shall have ownership of the intellectual property rights in encoded works created by an employee, even where the work was created out of the employee's own initiative, if the work in related to the employee's job responsibilities. For example, if an employee in the student records office creates a software program, on his/her own initiative, that will organize student records, such work is related to the employee's job duties and will belong to the District. Where an employee creates a program that does not relate to his/her job duties, and that program was created on the employee's own time, the work belongs to the employee.

<u>Collective Bargaining Agreement</u> – In the event the provisions of these procedures and the provisions of any operative collective bargaining agreement conflict, the collective bargaining agreement shall take precedence.

<u>Jointly Created Works</u> – Ownership of jointly created works shall be determined by separately assessing which of the above categories applies to each creator, respectively. Rights between joint owners of a copyright shall be determined pursuant to copyright law.

Work Acquired by Assignment or Will – The District may acquire copyrights by assignment or will pursuant to the terms of a written agreement or testament. The terms of such agreements should be consistent with District policies and these procedures.

Materials Implicating Third Party Rights

District employees and students must comply with District policies and state and federal laws, including copyright and privacy laws, in creating works. District employees and students must obtain all required licenses, consents, and releases necessary to avoid infringing the rights of third parties. District employees and students with questions or concerns regarding third party rights should direct all inquiries to the Dean of Academic Services.

Intellectual Property Coordinator

The Dean of Academic Services shall be the District's Intellectual Property Coordinator. The coordinator shall administer this procedure and will implement the District's Intellectual Property Policy. The Intellectual Property Coordinator will also monitor the development and use of the District's intellectual property. Any questions relating to the applicability of the District Intellectual Property or this procedure may be directed and answered by the Intellectual Property Coordinator.

Preservation of Intellectual Property Right

Protection of Rights – The District shall undertake such efforts, as it deems necessary to preserve its rights in original works for which the District is the sole or joint owner of intellectual property rights. The District may apply for a patent, for trademark

registration, for copyright registration, or for other protection available by law on any new work in which it maintains intellectual property rights.

Payment of Costs – The District may pay some or all costs required for obtaining a patent, trademark, copyright, or other classification on original works for which it exclusively owns intellectual property rights. If the District has intellectual property rights in a jointly owned work, the District may enter into an agreement with the joint owners concerning payment of such costs.

Commercialization of Intellectual Property

<u>Right of Commercialization</u> – The District may commercialize its Intellectual Property using its resources or it may enter into agreements with others to commercialize the work as authorized by law.

<u>Distribution of Proceeds</u> – An employee who creates a work and retains an intellectual property interest in such work in which the District maintains intellectual property rights is entitled to share in royalties, licenses, and any other payments from commercialization of the work in accordance with applicable agreements and applicable laws. All expenses incurred by the District in protecting and promoting the work including costs incurred in seeking patent or copyright protection and reasonable costs of marketing the work, shall be deducted and reimbursed to the District before the creator is entitled to share in the proceeds.

Intellectual Property Account – The District shall deposit all net proceeds from commercialization of intellectual property in its own general intellectual property account. The Dean of Academic Services may use the account to reimburse expenses related to creating or preserving the District's intellectual property rights or for any other purpose authorized by law and District policy including the development of intellectual property.

Notification

The Intellectual Property Coordinator shall provide a copy of these Intellectual Property Procedures to persons upon request. The District shall arrange training on a periodic basis for faculty, staff and/or other persons who are covered by this Intellectual Property Procedure.

Form A: Work Made For Hire Agreement

Course Materials

This agreement made the **[date]** day of **[month]**, 20**[year]**, by and between **[name of author]** ("Author," and if there is more than one author then all of them collectively) and the District.

The author and the District agree as follows:

1. <u>Title and Copyright Assignment</u>

- a) Author and District intend this to be a contract for services and each considers the products and results of the services to be rendered by Author hereunder (the "Work") to be a work made for hire. Author acknowledges and agrees that the Work (and all rights therein, including, without limitation, copyright) belongs to and shall be the sole and exclusive property of District.
- b) If for any reason the Work would not be considered a work made for hire under applicable law, Author does hereby sell, assign, and transfer to District, its successors and assigns, the entire right, title and interest in and to the copyright in the Work and any registrations and copyright applications relating thereto and any renewals and extensions thereof, and in and to all works based upon, derived from, or incorporating the Work, and in an to all income, royalties, damages, claims and payments now or hereafter due or payable with respect thereto, and in and to all causes of action, either in law or in equity for past, present, or future infringement based on the copyrights, and in and to all rights corresponding to the foregoing throughout the world.
- c) If the Work is one to which the provisions of 17 U.S. Code Section 106A apply, the Author hereby waives and appoints District to assert on the Author's behalf the Author's moral rights or any equivalent rights regarding the form or extent of any alteration to the Work (including, without limitation, removal or destruction) or the making of any derivative works based on the Work, including, without limitation, photographs, drawings or other visual reproductions or the Work, in any medium, for District purposes.
- d) Author agrees to execute all papers and to perform such other proper acts as District may deem necessary to secure for District or its designee the rights herein assigned.

2. Delivery of the Work

- a) The Author will deliver to the District on or before [date] the completed Work (with all illustrations, charts, graphs, and other material, including syllabi, handouts, reference lists, etc., in the medium mutually agreed upon for the Work) in form and content satisfactory to the District.
- b) If the Author fails to deliver the Work on time, the District will have the right to terminate this agreement and to recover from the Author any sums advanced

in connection with the Work. Upon such termination, the Author may not have the Work published elsewhere until such advances have been repaid.

3. Quoted Material

With the exception of short excerpts from others' works, which constitute fair use, the Work will contain no material from other copyrighted works without a written consent of the copyright holder. The Author will obtain such consents at his/her own expense after consultation with the District and will file them with the District at the time the Work is delivered. Any obligations associated with permissions will be the responsibility of the Author.

4. Author's Warranty

The Author warrants that he/she is the sole owner of the Work and has full power and authority to make this agreement; that the Work does not infringe any copyright, violate any property rights, or contain any scandalous, libelous, or unlawful matter. The Author will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and/or its licensees against all claims, suits, costs, damages, and expenses that the District and/or its licensees may sustain by reason of any scandalous, libelous, or unlawful matter contained or alleged to be contained in the Work or any infringement or violation by the Work of any copyright or property right; and until such claim or suit has been settled or withdrawn, the District may withhold any sums due the Author under this agreement.

5. Consideration

In consideration for delivery of the Work in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, District shall pay Author **[amount]**.

6. Revisions

Note: Choose one paragraph

The Author shall retain the right to revise the Work at one year intervals during the term of this agreement in accordance with academic standards. The Author further agrees to update the Work within 90 days upon the receipt of a written request from the District. The provisions of this agreement shall apply to each revision of the Work by the Author as though that revision were the Work being published for the first time under this agreement. In the event that the Author is unable or unwilling to provide a revision within 90 days after the District has requested it, or should the Author be deceased, the District may have the revision made and charge the cost against sums due the Author under Section 5 above, if any, and may display, in the revised Work and in advertising, the name of the person or persons who perform the revision.

Or

This paragraph has been deleted because the Author's contribution is not a work expressing academic expertise requiring periodic review and revision.

7. Term and Termination

a) This agreement shall remain in effect for three years unless terminated earlier in accordance with this Section 7.

- b) In the event that either party shall be in default of its material obligations under this agreement and shall fail to remedy such default within 60 days after receipt of written notice thereof, this agreement shall terminate upon expiration of the 60-day period.
- c) Upon the expiration of the term of this agreement, the parties may agree to renew this agreement for an additional three-year term, upon the same terms and conditions as set forth herein.

8. Options/Contracts with Third Parties

Nothing contained in Section 7 shall affect any license or other grant of rights, options, or agreements made with third parties prior to the termination date or the rights of the District in the income resulting from such agreements.

9. Amendments

Dean of Academic Services/Date

The written provisions contained in this agreement constitute the sole and entire agreement made between the Author and the District concerning this Work, and any amendments to this agreement shall not be valid unless made in writing and signed by both parties.

10. Construction, Binding Effect, and Assignment

This agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California and shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their heirs, successors, assigns, and personal representatives; and references to the Author and to the District shall include their heirs, successors, assigns, and personal representatives.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,	the parties have o	luly executed this a	agreement as of the date
first written above.			
Author/Date			

Form B: Contract under which Employee Keeps Copyright of the Work and Gives District a License to Use/Exploit Work

Course Materials

This Agreement made the **[date]** day of **[month]**, 20**[year]**, by and between **[name of author]** ("Author," and if there is more than one author then all of them collectively) and the District.

Recitals

The Author will be the sole contributor of copyrightable expression to the educational course materials anticipated to result from this project. The District will be contributing significant kinds and/or amounts of District resources. The Parties recognize that under law, the District is obligated to obtain appropriate consideration for the transfer of state resources. In furtherance of their mutual objectives, the Parties agree to allocate certain of their rights and responsibilities as set forth in this agreement.

The author and the District agree as follows:

1. Rights Granted

Nonprofit Educational Uses – The Author hereby grants to the District for the full term of this agreement the non-exclusive right to copy, distribute, display, perform, transmit, and publish for nonprofit educational purposes the educational course materials entitled: [name of work] (hereinafter called "Work").

2. Delivery of the Work

- a) The Author will prepare and deliver to the District on or before [date] the completed Work (with all illustrations, charts, graphs, and other material, including syllabi, handouts, reference lists, etc., in the medium mutually agreed upon for the Work) in form and content satisfactory to the District.
- b) If the Author fails to deliver the Work on time, the District will have the right to terminate this agreement and to recover from the Author any sums or other resources advanced in connection with the Work. Upon such termination, the Author may not have the Work published elsewhere until such advances have been repaid.

3. Quoted Material

With the exception of short excerpts from others' works, which constitute fair use, the Work will contain no material from other copyrighted works without a written consent of the copyright holder. The Author will obtain such consents at his/her own expense after consultation with the District and will file them with the District at the time the Work is delivered. Any obligations associated with permissions will be the responsibility of the Author.

4. Publication of the Work

The Work shall be distributed, transmitted or published by the [District/Author] as soon as circumstances permit after receipt, at its own expense, in such manner as the [District/Author] shall deem appropriate.

5. Copyright Registration

The Author authorizes the District to register copyright in the Work in the Author's name in the United States and elsewhere as the District may elect.

6. Author's Warranty

- a) The Author warrants that he/she is the sole owner of the Work and has full power and authority to make this agreement; that he or she has made a good faith effort to follow the District's Intellectual Property Policy and Procedures and that the Work does not infringe any copyright, violate any property rights, or contain any scandalous, libelous, or unlawful matter.
- b) To the extent that an act of the Author that results in a claim of copyright infringement was authorized by the District's Intellectual Property Policy and Procedures, in accordance with that Policy and to the extent authorized by the Constitution and laws of the State of California, the District, will defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Author against all claims, suits, costs, damages and expenses that the Author may sustain by reason of such infringement or violation by the Work of any copyright.
- c) In all other cases, the Author will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and/or its licensees against all claims, suits, costs, damages, and expenses that the District and/or its licensees may sustain by reason of any scandalous, libelous, or unlawful matter contained or alleged to be contained in the Work or any infringement or violation by the Work of any copyright or property right; and until such claim or suit has been settled or withdrawn, the District may withhold any sums due the Author under this agreement.

7. Consideration

a) <u>District will contribute the following resources to the creation of the Work:</u>

[List: Materials, Hardware, Software, Technical Assistance, Other Assistance, Videotaping, Programming, Teaching Load Credit, or Funding.]

Note: Choose one of the following paragraphs

The parties shall share in any revenues from the commercialization of the Work as follows: District will first recover its resource contribution in the amount of \$\,\,\), then the Parties shall share profits 50% to the District and 50% to all Authors (to be shared evenly among the Authors if more than one.)

8. Subsidiary Rights

Nonprofit Educational Uses – The District has been granted a limited right to use the Work for nonprofit educational purposes only and therefore does not need subsidiary rights and all such rights are retained by the Author.

9. Revisions

The Author shall retain the right to revise the Work at one year intervals during the term of this agreement in accordance with academic standards. The Author further agrees to update the Work within 90 days upon the receipt of a written request from the District. The provisions of this agreement shall apply to each revision of the Work by the Author as though that revision were the Work being published for the first time under this agreement. In the event that the Author is unable or unwilling to provide a revision within 90 days after the District has requested it, or should the Author be deceased, the District may have the revision made and charge the cost against the Author's royalties and may display, in the revised Work and in advertising, the name of the person or persons who perform the revision.

10. Term and Termination

- a) This Agreement shall remain in effect for three year(s) unless terminated earlier in accordance with this Section 10. Upon expiration of the term and any renewal term(s) agreed upon pursuant to Section 10(c), or upon earlier termination in accordance with Section 10(b), the rights granted in the Work shall revert to the Author, subject to retention by the District of the non-exclusive, perpetual right and license to use the Work for internal nonprofit educational purposes and to use the structure and organization of the Work as a guide for the creation of a new course.
- b) In the event that either Party shall be in default of its material obligations under this Agreement and shall fail to remedy such default within 60 days after receipt of written notice thereof, this Agreement shall terminate upon expiration of the 60 day period.
- c) Upon the expiration of the term of this Agreement, the parties may agree to renew this Agreement for an additional three year term, upon the same terms and conditions as set forth herein.

11. Options/Contracts with Third Parties

Nothing contained in Section 10 shall affect any license or other grant of rights, options, or agreements made with third parties prior to the termination date or the rights of the District in the income resulting from such agreements.

12. Amendments

The written provisions contained in this agreement constitute the sole and entire agreement made between the Author and the District concerning this Work, and any amendments to this agreement shall not be valid unless made in writing and signed by both parties.

13. Construction, Binding Effect, and Assignment

This agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California and shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their heirs, successors, assigns, and personal representatives; and references to the Author

and to the District shall include their heirs, successors, assigns, and personal representatives.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this agreement as of the date first written above.

Author/Date

Dean of Academic Services/Date

Office of Primary Responsibility: Dean of Academic Services

NOTE: This procedure is **legally advised**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

(This is a new procedure recommended by the CC League and the League's legal counsel)

General Institution DRAFT as of 2/29/12

AP 3750 USE OF COPYRIGHTED MATERIAL

References:

Education Code Sections 32360 and 67302; U. S. Code Title 17, Copyright Act of 1976

Employees and students shall not reproduce copyrighted materials without prior permission of the copyright owner, except as allowed by the "fair use" doctrine.

Fair Use

Reference:

Copyright Act, Section 107

The "fair use" doctrine permits limited use of copyrighted materials in certain situations, including teaching and scholarship. In some instances, copyright may be required for works that fall within "fair use."

Note: The following is excerpted from the legislative history of the 1976 Copyright Act, which established congressionally endorsed guidelines related to classroom copying for educational use.

I. Single Copying for Teachers

A single copy may be made of any of the following by or for a teacher at his/her individual request for his/her scholarly research or use in teaching or preparation to teach a class:

- A. A chapter from a book
- B. An article from a periodical or newspaper
- C. A short story, short essay or short poem, whether or not from a collective work
- D. A chart, graph, diagram, drawing, cartoon, or picture from a book, periodical, or newspaper

II. Multiple Copies for Classroom Use

Multiple copies (not to exceed in any event more than one copy per pupil in a course) may be made by or for the teacher giving the course for classroom use or discussion, provided that:

- A. The copying meets the tests of brevity and spontaneity as defined below; and
- B. Meets the cumulative effect test as defined below; and
- C. Each copy includes a notice of copyright

Definitions

Brevity:

- i. Poetry: (a) A complete poem if less than 250 words and if printed on not more than two pages or (b) from a longer poem, an excerpt of not more than 250 words.
- ii. Prose: (a) Either a complete article, story or essay of less than 2,500 words, or (b) an excerpt from any prose work of not more than 1,000 words or 10% of the work, whichever is less, but in any event a minimum of 500 words. (Each of the numerical limits stated in "i" and "ii" above may be expanded to permit the completion of an unfinished line of a poem or of an unfinished prose paragraph.)
- iii. <u>Illustration: One chart, graph, diagram, drawing, cartoon or picture per book or per periodical issue.</u>
- iv. "Special" works: Certain works in poetry, prose, or in "poetic prose" which often combine language with illustrations and which are intended sometimes for children and at other times for a more general audience fall short of 2,500 words in their entirety. Paragraph "i" above notwithstanding such "special works" may not be reproduced in their entirety; however, an excerpt comprising not more than two of the published pages of such special work and containing not more than 10% of the words found in the text thereof may be reproduced.

Spontaneity:

- i. The copying is at the instance and inspiration of the individual teacher; and
- ii. The inspiration and decision to use the work and the moment of its use for maximum teaching effectiveness are so close in time that it would be unreasonable to expect a timely reply to a request for permission.

Cumulative Effect:

- i. The copying of the material is for only one course in the school in which the copies are made.
- ii. Not more than one short poem, article, story, essay or two excerpts may be copied from the same author, nor more than three from the same collective work or periodical volume during one class term.
- iii. There shall not be more than nine instances of such multiple copying for one course during one class term. (The limitations stated in "ii" and "iii" above shall not apply to current news periodicals and newspapers and current news sections of other periodicals.)

III. Prohibitions

Notwithstanding any of the above, the following shall be prohibited:

- A. Copying shall not be used to create or to replace or substitute for anthologies, compilations, or collective works. Such replacement or substitution may occur whether copies of various works or excerpts therefrom are accumulated or are reproduced and used separately.
- B. There shall be no copying of or from works intended to be "consumable" in the course of study or teaching. These include workbooks, exercises, standardized tests and test booklets and answer sheets and like consumable material.

C. Copying shall not:

- i. <u>substitute for the purchase of books, publisher's reprints or periodicals</u>
- ii. be directed by higher authority
- iii. <u>be repeated with respect to the same item by the same teacher from term</u> to term.
- D. No charge shall be made to the student beyond the actual cost of the photocopying.

Compilations

Reference:

Basic Books, Inc. v. Kinko's Graphics Corp. (S.D.N.Y. 1991) 758 F.Supp. 1522; and Princeton University Press v. Michigan Document Services, Inc. (6th Cir. 1996) F.3d 1381

Permission from the copyright owner should be obtained when using excerpts of copyrighted work to create anthologies or "coursepacks," even if the excerpts fall under the definitions in the "fair use" doctrine.

Online Courses

References:

The TEACH (Technology, Education and Copyright Harmonization) Act, U.S. Code 17, Copyright Act, Sections 110(2) and 112

The Teach Act provides instructors greater flexibility to use third party copyrighted works in online courses. An individual assessment will be required to determine whether a given use is protected under the Act. The following criteria are generally required:

- The online instruction is mediated by an instructor.
- The transmission of the material is limited to receipt by students enrolled in the course.
- <u>Technical safeguards are used to prevent retention of the transmission for longer</u> than the class session.
- The performance is either of a non-dramatic work or a "reasonable and limited portion" of any other work that is comparable to that displayed in a live classroom session.
- The work is not a textbook, course pack, or other material typically purchased or acquired by students for their independent use and retention, including commercial works that are sold or licensed for the purposes of digital distance education.
- The District does not know, or have reason to know, that the copy of the work was not lawfully made or acquired.
- The District notifies students that the works may be subject to copyright protection and that they may not violate the legal rights of the copyright holder.

Obtaining Permission to Use Copyrighted Material

- 1. Obtain a copy of the booklets "Questions and Answers on Copyright for the Campus Community" and "Guidelines for Campus Copying", "Copyright Infringement" from the Library.
- If works fall within copyrighted material guidelines, contact the Office of Academic Services for an additional assessment of the need to obtain copyright permission.
- 3. Apply for copyright permission. Plan to obtain permissions well in advance of the intended use date. Obtaining appropriate permissions may require up to 120 days.
- 4. When granted permission is received, return the original to the Office of Academic Services for archiving.

The college encourages ongoing education for campus employees on the use of copyrighted materials including:

- 1. The Association of American Publishers, <u>www.publishers.org</u>, click on "conferences and publications"
- 2. National Association of College Stores, <u>www.nacs.org</u>, click on "industry information"
- 3. Software and Information Industry Association, www.siia.net, click on "bookstore"
- 4. American Libraries
 Association, http://www.ala.org/advocacy/copyright/crtools#evaluator

NOTE: This procedure is **suggested as good practice**. The **red ink** is language recommended by the Community College League and legal counsel (Liebert Cassidy Whitmore). The information in blue ink is language to consider including.

Date Approved:

(This is a new procedure recommended by the CC League and the League's legal counsel)

2012-2017 Facilities Master Plan

The main campus consists of 248,195 square feet of space divided among fifteen buildings, four re-locatable buildings and nineteen outbuildings located on approximately 184 acres. All programs and services are housed in buildings designed for, or appropriate to their use. In addition to classrooms, laboratories, and offices, the college owns a 130-bed dormitory, library, cafeteria, several computer laboratories, and a large gymnasium. The main campus includes an all-weather running track, softball facility, stables for thirty horses, a rodeo arena, and an agricultural production facility. The College leases four rooms at the old Credence High School for the Nursing Program. Additionally, it maintains a lease to operate the Coppervale Ski Hill located fifteen miles to the West of the main campus. Coppervale is used for both ski instruction and public recreation. Lassen College also maintains a lease with the City of Susanville Parks and Recreation District for the use of a baseball field.

The Director of Facilities is responsible for the physical plant. The Maintenance and Operations staff consists of four maintenance specialists; one five-month grounds maintenance person, one full-time classified custodial lead person, and three full-time custodians.

I. FACILITIES PLANNING COMMITTEE

The following individuals served as members of the 2010-2011 Facilities Master Planning Committee:

- Dr. Kayleigh Carabajal (Vice President/Dean of Academic Services)
- Cary Templeton (Dean of Student Services)
- Michael Giampaoli (Faculty)
- Ross Stevenson (Faculty)
- Brian Wolf (Faculty)
- Eric Rulofson –(Management, committee chair)

- Francis Beaujon –(Management)
- Shelly Baxter (Management, alternate)
- Patrick Clancy (Classified)
- Phil Horner (Classified)

II. 2012-2017 ACADEMIC EXPECTATIONS AND STANDARDS

Expectation 1: Provide beautiful, clean well maintained grounds

Standards:

- Use water conservation practices
- Create low maintenance zero-scaping
- Provide adequate resources to maintain campus cleanliness
- Reduce the overall carbon footprint of the college
- Promote a healthful college environment

Expectation 2: Provide a safe and secure campus

Standards:

- Maintain adequate exterior lighting
- Maintain the security of District assets
- Maintain safe walkways and parking access in inclement weather
- Maintain and provide campus security systems

Expectation 3: Provide barrier free access to campus facilities

Standards:

- Ensure all new construction and major remodels include barrier free access
- Assure campus access and navigation

Expectation 4: .Optimize the utilization of campus space

Standards:

- Integrate planning, utilization and communication
- Maintain facilities for optimal energy and personnel efficiency
- Provide educational environments that are appropriate to the discipline

	2012-2013								
Goa l	Objective		Strategy Description	Desired Outcome	Timeli ne	Responsible Party(s)	Performance Measures		
	Equip classrooms with current technology Create a high tech Business Computer Lab.	•	Equip smart classrooms phase II Create and equip Business Computer Lab.	To maximize the integration of technology into every Lassen College classroom	Fall 2012	Director of Facilities Institutional Technology Group	Equip smart classrooms phase II Create and equip Business Computer Lab.		
	Locate and prioritize funding to modernize The	•	VETA Funds CCCC State Chancellor's Grants	Secured funding outside District	Fall 2012	Dean of Instructional Services,			

District's equipment & facilities	Other Grants	general funds		Director of Facility	
Full Disaster Preparedness compliance	 Secure and implement the Keenan and Associates disaster preparedness online training program & create a District wide staff training schedule Create the Disaster Preparedness Plan (DPP) 	Begin the required Disaster preparedness employee training Completion of the Disaster Preparedness Plan	Fall 2012	Human Resources Disaster preparedness Adhoc Committee, Director of Facilities	
Annually revie the District's Space Inventor and Utilization Report	recommendations	Completed annual review with recommendations	Spring 2013	Facility Planning Committee	
Maintain an annual list of facility IPR/NI requests.	Categorize and maintain a list of IPR/NIPR facility requests R	Complete request list	Spring 2013	Office of Instruction Director of Facilities	
Implement the District's Scheduled Maintenance Five-Year Plar when funded (Appendix A)	Annually submit projects for funding and complete funded projects ee	Completion of funded projects as scheduled	Spring 2013	Director of Facilities	

	2013-2014							
Goa l	Objective	Strategy Description	Desired Outcome	Timeli ne	Responsible Party(s)	Performance Measures		
	Locate and prioritize funding to modernize The District's equipment & facilities	VETA FundsCCCC State Chancellor's GrantsOther Grants	Secured funding outside District general funds	Fall 2013	Dean of Instructional Services Director of Facility			
	Full Disaster Preparedness compliance	Complete the implementation of required employee disaster preparedness training using the Keenan and Associates disaster preparedness online training program	Complete the required Disaster preparedness employee training	Fall 2013	Human Resources Disaster preparedness Adhoc Committee, Director of Facilities			
	Annually review the District's Space Inventory and Utilization Report	Annually review data, and offer recommendations	Completed annual review with recommendations	Spring 2014	Facility Planning Committee			
	Maintain an annual list of facility IPR/NIPR requests.	 Categorize and maintain a list of IPR/NIPR facility requests 	Complete request list	Spring 2014	Office of Instruction Director of Facilities			

Implement the District's Scheduled Maintenance Five-Year Plan when funded (see Appendix A)	•	Annually submit projects for funding and complete funded projects	Completion of funded projects as scheduled	Spring 2014	Director of Facilities	f	
Convert the traditional print library to a virtual, paperless, digital library	•	Create and equip a virtual library facility including climate control		Spring 2014	Director of Facilities Institutional Technology Group	f	Create and equip a virtual library

			2014-2015			
Goal	Objective	Strategy Description	Desired Outcome	Timeline	Responsible Party(s)	Performance Measures
	Continue the elimination of physical barriers and address ADA compliance issues	Replace 2.5% of sidewalks that don't meet ADA compliance.	2.5% sidewalks replaced	Fall 2014	Director of Facilities	

Locate and prioritize funding to modernize The District's equipment & facilities	 VETA Funds CCCC State Chancellor's Grants Other Grants 	Secured funding outside District general funds	Fall 2014	Dean of Instructional Services Director of Facility Director of Resource Development
Maintain full Disaster Preparedness compliance	Review the Disaster Preparedness document making updates and changes as needed.	Maintain an up to date Disaster Planning document	Fall 2014	Disaster Preparedness Adhoc Committee, Consultation council, Administrative Council, Governing board
Annually review the District's Space Inventory and Utilization Report	Annually review data, and offer recommendations	Completed annual review with recommendations	Spring 2015	Facility Planning Committee
Maintain an annual list of facility IPR/NIPR requests.	Categorize and maintain a list of IPR/NIPR facility requests	Complete request list	Spring 2015	Office of Instruction Director of Facilities
Implement the District's Scheduled	 Annually submit projects for funding and complete funded projects 	Completion of funded projects as	Spring 2014	Director of Facilities

Maintenance		scheduled		
Five-Year Plan				
when funded (see				
Appendix A)				
•	·		 -	·

2015-2016

Goal	Objective	Strategy Description	Desired Outcome	Timeline	Responsible Party(s)	Performance Measures
	Continue the elimination of physical barriers and address ADA compliance issues	• Replace 2.5% of sidewalks that don't meet ADA compliance.	2.5% sidewalks replaced	Fall 2015	Director of Facilities	
	Locate and prioritize funding to modernize The District's equipment & facilities	 VETA Funds CCCC State Chancellor's Grants Other Grants 	Secured funding outside District general funds	Fall 2015	Dean of Instructional Services Director of Facility Director of Resource Development	
	Maintain full Disaster Preparedness compliance	Review the Disaster Preparedness document making updates and changes as needed.	Maintain an up to date Disaster Planning document	Fall 2015	Disaster Preparedness, Adhoc Committee, Consultation council,	

				Administrative Council, Governing board	
Annually review the District's Space Inventory and Utilization Report	Annually review data, and offer recommendations	Completed annual review with recommendations	Spring 2016	Facility Planning Committee	
Maintain an annual list of facility IPR/NIPR requests.	Categorize and maintain a list of IPR/NIPR facility requests	Complete request list	Spring 2016	Office of Instruction Director of Facilities	
Implement the District's Scheduled Maintenance Five-Year Plan when funded (see Appendix A)	 Annually submit projects for funding and complete funded projects 	Completion of funded projects as scheduled	Spring 2016	Director of Facilities	

			2016-2017			
Goal	Objective	Strategy Description	Desired Outcome	Timeline	Responsible Party(s)	Performance Measures
	Continue the elimination of	 Replace 2.5% of sidewalks that don't meet ADA compliance. 	2.5% sidewalks	Fall	Director of	

physical barriers and address ADA compliance issues		replaced	2016	Facilities
Locate and prioritize funding to modernize The District's equipment & facilities	 VETA Funds CCCC State Chancellor's Grants Other Grants 	Secured funding outside District general funds	Fall 2016	Dean of Instructional Services Director of Facility Director of Resource Development
Maintain full Disaster Preparedness compliance	Review the Disaster Preparedness document making updates and changes as needed.	Maintain an up to date Disaster Planning document	Fall 2016	Disaster Preparedness, Adhoc Committee, Consultation council, Administrative Council, Governing board
Annually review the District's Space Inventory and Utilization Report	Annually review data, and offer recommendations	Completed annual review with recommendations	Spring 2017	Facility Planning Committee
Maintain an annual list of facility IPR/NIPR	Categorize and maintain a list of IPR/NIPR facility requests	Complete request list	Spring 2017	Office of Instruction Director of Facilities

requests.					
Implement the	 Annually submit projects for 	Completion of	Spring	Director of	
District's	funding and complete funded	funded projects as	2017	Facilities	
Scheduled	projects	scheduled			
Maintenance					
Five-Year Plan					
when funded (see					
Appendix A)					

APPENDIX: District Scheduled Maintenance Five-Year Plan

I. Roof Repairs or Replacement

Fiscal Year of Funding	Needs	State Funds	Local Funds	Est. Repair/ Replaceme nt Cost
2012	Creative Arts flat roof	14,500.00	0	\$14,500.00
2013	Replace the Maintenance and Receiving metal roof	\$192,000.00	0	\$192,000.00
2014	Replace the Cafeteria metal roof	0	\$115,000.00	\$115,00.00
2014	Replace the Dormitory metal roof	\$225,000. 00	0	\$225,000.0 0
2015	Replace Sports Complex flat roof	\$45,000.0 0	0	\$45,000.00
2016	Replace Boardroom metal roof	\$35,000.0 0	0	\$35,000.00

II. Utility Repairs or Replacement

Fiscal Year	Needs	State	Local	Est. Repair/
of Funding		Funds	Funds	Replaceme
				nt Cost

2012	Replace Electrical Distribution #3 GFIC Breaker	\$55,000.00	0	\$55,000.00
2012	Replace Electrical Distribution #1 GFIC Breaker	\$45,000.0	0	\$45,000.00
		0		
2013	Replace 14 KV electrical transformers with	\$185,000.	0	\$185,000.0
	12KV units	00		0
2014	Replace Sports Complex Motor Control Center	\$62,000.0	0	\$62,000.00
		0		
2014	Replace Sports Complex Electrical panels	\$21,000.0	0	\$21,000.00
		0		
2015	Replace Creative Arts Motor Control Center	\$35,000.0	0	\$35,000.00
		0		
2015	Test and Inspect 14KV equipment and remove	\$32,000.0	0	\$32,000.00
	UPS	0		
2016	Replace underground high voltage cables	\$125,000.	0	\$125,000.0
	(14KV)	00		0

III. Mechanical Repairs or Replacement

Fiscal Year of Funding	Needs	State Funds	Local Funds	Est. Repair/ Replaceme nt Cost
2012	Install stand-alone boilers phase I	\$225,000. 00	0	\$225,000.0 0
2012	Repair Creative Arts chiller	\$17,500.0 0	0	\$17,500.00
2012	Replace HVAC air compressors	\$15,000.0	0	\$15,000.00

		0		
2012	Install stand-alone control air compressors	\$22,000.0	0	\$22,000.00
		0		
2013	Replace Environmental Control System phase I	\$650,000.	0	\$650,000.0
		00		0
2014	Install stand-alone boilers phase II	\$20,000.0	0	\$20,000.00
		0		
2014	Replace Elevator Control System	\$12,000.0	0	\$12,000.00
		0		
2014	Replace water heaters	\$225,000.	0	\$225,000.0
		00		0
2015	Replace campus main heating plant	\$500,000.	0	\$500,000.0
		00		0
2016	Install stand-alone boilers phase II	\$300,000.	0	\$300,000.0
		00		0

IV. Exterior Repairs or Replacement

Fiscal Year of Funding		State Funds	Local Funds	Est. Repair/ Replaceme nt Cost
2012	Repair concrete loading dock	0	\$25,000. 00	\$25,000.00
2013	Replace cracked and failing walkways Dormitory & Administration	\$32,000.0 0	0	\$32,000.00
2014	Replace Cracked and Heaving Sidewalks	\$30,000.0	0	\$30,000.00

	phase II	0		
2015	Repaint Ag, Trades, and Softball out building exteriors	\$12,200.0 0	0	\$12,200.00
2016	Replace Cracked and Heaving Sidewalks phase III	\$30,000.0		\$30,000.00

V. Other Repairs or Replacement

Fiscal Year of Funding	Needs	State Funds	Local Funds	Est. Repair/ Replaceme
				nt Cost
2012	Replace Creative Arts building floor and window coverings	\$56,000.0 00	0	\$56,000.00
2012	Repaint the Humanities building interior walls	\$32,000.0 0	0	\$32,000.00
2012	Repaint the Creative Arts building interior walls	\$35,000.0 0	0	\$35,000.00
2013	Replace Humanities floor and window coverings	\$35,000.0 0	0	\$35,000.00
2013	Remove hazardous waste from the L, M, and N buildings	\$125,000. 00	0	\$125,000.0 0
2014	Replace Math/Science floor coverings	\$56,000.0 0	0	\$56,000.00
2014	Repaint the Auto Shop interior walls	\$22,000.0 0	0	\$22,000.00
2014	Replace flooring in Dormitory	0	\$35,000.	\$35,000.00

			00	
2015	Repaint the math/Science interior walls	\$24,000.0	0	\$24,000.00
		0		
2015	Remove asbestos from Dormitory piping and	\$85,000.0	0	\$85,000.00
	ceilings	0		
2016	Repaint Sports Complex shower rooms	\$28,000.0	0	\$28,000.00
		0		
2016	Replace floor covering in Administration and	\$12,500.0	0	\$12,500.00
	Business office	0		·

Facility Planning Committee IPR & NIPR Facility Recommendations 2012-2013

- 1. Improve physical handicapped access to all library materials and services, including the circulating books now shelved on the library's mezzanine. [2002- Library NIPR Priority #1] Status: Completion scheduled through the Humanities Modernization
- 2. Improve climate control in the library space to provide a reasonable working environment year round for students, staff, and equipment. [2002-Library NIPR Priority #2] Status: Completion scheduled through the Humanities Modernization
- 3. Monitor and improve electrical and data wiring to meet growing needs. [2002- Library NIPR Priority #3] Status: Completion scheduled through the Humanities Modernization
- 4. Provide a new or remodeled library large enough to meet current and future needs, including seating and shelving, following the specifications in Title V. [2002- Library NIPR Priority #4] Status: Completion scheduled through the Humanities Modernization
- 5. Seek funding to develop adequate facilities for the most efficient, effective provision of library services to all Lassen College students. [2002-Library NIPR Priority #5] Status: Completion scheduled through the Humanities Modernization
- 6. Allocate funding for adequate air conditioning for the vocational building and the program office in the Careers Building [2004- Gun Smithing IPR Priority #7] Status: remains a need
- 7. The Gun Smithing/NRA Program will need additional machine shop and laboratory space to accommodate additional students safely. [2004-Gun Smithing IPR Priority #8] Status: remains a need
- 8. Establish and implement maintenance schedule for the piano. [2004 Music IPR Priority # 5] Status: remains a need
- 9. Provide a chemical storeroom exhaust system for the central biology preparation room. [2004 -Biological IPR Priority #12] Status: remains a need
- 10. Replace the partition between the two lecture room (MS-121 and MS-122) with a solid soundproof wall. [2006 -Mathematics IPR Priority #16] Status: remains a need

- 11. Maintain, repair and clean facilities on a frequent and on-going schedule. Prevent disrepair of Physical Education facilities whether in the Sports Center building, elsewhere on-campus or at off-campus facilities under LCC control. [2006 Physical Education IPR Priority # 1] Status: Created dayshift custodial position to help address cleanliness. Maintenance and repair remains a need due to low M&O staffing levels
- 12. Make available facilities dedicated to each of the following types of class: fitness (yoga, dance, and senior fitness), wrestling, and baseball/softball hitting cages and adapted Physical Education. [2006 Physical Education IPR Priority # 4] Status: remains a need
- 13. Upgrade Fitness Center space and equipment, replace worn carpet and linoleum in Fitness Center with rubber flooring intended for weight rooms. [2006 Physical Education IPR Priority # 5] Status: some rubber floor installed more needed, remains a need
- 14. Build soccer and baseball fields on campus [2006 Physical Education IPR Priority # 12] Status: remains a need
- 15. Completely replace the track surface that is in complete disrepair so use can be continued safely by Physical Education courses, Intercollegiate Athletics teams and community use. [2006 Physical Education IPR Priority # 13] Status: remains a need
- 16. Replace ceramic tile flooring in the men's locker room, women's locker room and training room. [2006 Physical Education IPR Priority # 15] Status: remains a need
- 17. Explore feasibility of building an on-campus pool facility. [2006 Physical Education IPR Priority # 16] Status: remains a need
- 18. Build structure for delivery of drinking water to softball field, track, soccer practice field and any other outdoor facilities that may be developed. Build drinking fountains. [2006 Physical Education IPR Priority # 18] Status: partially completed, remains a need
- 19. Install volleyball pole receptacles in gymnasium floor and follow through with other work orders that have been submitted for Physical Education and Athletics equipment and facilities. [2006 Physical Education IPR Priority # 20] Status: Remains a need due to low M&O staffing levels
- 20. Work with Maintenance staff to monitor temperatures in the Sports Center; control temperatures in each activity room to better accommodate student comfort during activity courses. [2006 Physical Education IPR Priority # 21] Status: Ongoing
- 21. Improve heating, cooling and air circulation in HU110-112. [2007- Work Experience IPR Priority #3] Status: Completion through the Humanities Modernization

- 22. Allocate funding for adequate air-conditioning for the Humanities building and the Creative Arts building. [2007 –Liberal Arts IPR Priority #12] Status: Completion through the Humanities Modernization
- 23. Repair the "rattles" in the heating system as needed. [2007 –Liberal Arts IPR Priority #13] Status: Completion through the Humanities Modernization
- 24. Clean carpets on a scheduled and frequent basis and/or replace carpets in the Humanities building and the Creative Arts building. [2007 Liberal Arts IPR Priority #14] Status: Completion through the Humanities Modernization
- 25. Review handicapped access to both buildings and report problems to the Administration. [2007 –Liberal Arts IPR Priority #16]
- 26. It is necessary to maintain the temperature in the building as close to 72°F as possible to prevent unsafe conditions as a result of the chemicals stored in the laboratory and prep rooms. [2008 –Physical Science IPR Priority #14]- Status: Ongoing
- 27. Remove and replace wood panels, wallpaper, etc. that were damaged by water (Math-Science). [2008 Physical Science IPR Priority #16] Status: remains a need
- 28. Repair or replace the controls for the heating and cooling system, and provide regular maintenance for them. [2008 Physical Science IPR Priority #25] Status: remains a need
- **29.** Facility additions or improvements should be included in budget planning, with current cost projections, for the maintenance of Program activities (independent from FTE generation): [2008-Agriculture IPR Priority #8] Status: remains a need
 - a. Livestock wash rack area Status: remains a need
 - **b.** Water truck for arenas and pens Status: remains a need
- 30. These facility additions should be considered in budget planning, with current cost projections, when student enrollment generations 70 FTE: [2008-Agriculture IPR Priority #9] Status: remains a need
 - a. Indoor arena for rodeo practice and horse classes Status: remains a need
 - b. Safety fence (pipe construction) around perimeter of agriculture facilities Status: remains a need
 - c. Landscaping of agriculture facilities Status: remains a need
- 31. Examine the feasibility of establishing a portable computer lab. Prepare VT 101 to be used as a classroom/lab. [2008- Business IPR Priority #9] Status: remains a need

- 32. Establish a \$100,000.00 match fund account to be used as the District match for the Scheduled Maintenance Program Architectural Barrier Removal Program, Capital Outlay Construction program, and other available grants requiring matching funds. [2008- Maintenance and Operations NIPR Budget Priority #6] -
- 33. Seek a new facility for the Fire Technology Program, possibly the Co-Gen Plant [2009 Fire Technology IPR Priority #7] Status: remains a need
- 34. Seek relocation/expansion of facility for the Gunsmithing Program including the possibly of an indoor range. [2009-Gunsmithing IPR Priority #3] Status: remains a need
- 35. Locate additional classroom space for the NRA Program that is compliant with Board Policy 6900 regarding the possession of firearms on campus. [2009-Gunsmithing IPR Priority # 5] Status: remains a need
- 36. Schedule maintenance for the remedial English classroom. [2009- Basic Skills IPR Budget Priority #8] Status: remains a need
- 37. Replace the partition between the two lecture rooms (MS-121 and MS-122) with a solid soundproof wall. [2009- Basic Skills IPR Budget Priority #14] Status: remains a need
- 38. Provide a clean living environment that encourages students to keep the facility clean. [2009- Residential Life NIPR Budget Priority #14] Status: increased custodial work-study allotment to improve services. Still needs improvement.
- 39. Reconfigure the cubicles and office spaces to provide increased privacy and confidentiality, improve student services and efficiency. [2009–Enrollment Services NIPR Facilities] Status: remains a need
- 40. [2009-10-Agriculture IPR Priority]
 - a. Assess the availability of office space for part-time faculty.
 - b. Establish MS-101 as a conference room/small classroom.
 - c. Assess the feasibility of providing additional lecture space in the Math/Science building.
 - d. Landscaping of agriculture facilities
 - 1) Installation of sprinkler system for lawn area and arena
 - 2) Plant trees and plants in livestock area
 - e. Wash Rack area

f. Heater for green house

Completed IPR & NIPR Facility Recommendations

- 1. A technologically equipped classroom that has Interactive T.V. capability. [2004- Gun Smithing IPR Priority #6] Status: completed
- 2. Provide the Welding Technology Program with a technologically equipped classroom. [2004- Welding IPR Priority #3] Status: completed
- 3. Expand or move the High Tech Center facilities for students while maintaining close proximity to the learning disabilities lab and correct environmental problems. [2005- Developmental Studies IPR Priority #6] Status: completed
- 4. Replace plastic chairs with adjustable computer chairs. Replace desks with modular storable type desk. [2008- Business IPR Priority #11] Status: furniture purchased.
- 5. If central servers are not outsourced, find/build a new central server facility to provide adequate temperature control, air quality, and access control. [2008- Technology NIPR Priority #13] Status: facility created servers replaced
- 6. New building for EOP&S staff to be in one area and have our book room in the same building. Need to have secured filing system, locked cabinets, storage and all EOP&S staff together this will alleviate overcrowding and confidentiality issues affecting various student services programs. [2009- EOP&S NIPR Budget Priority #3] Status: moved to VT119
- 7. Find adequate space to house new part time counselors. [2009- Counseling NIPR Counseling Priority #4] Status: VT105 reconfigured to accommodate this request.
- 8. Develop a plan for relocation of the four-year old classroom when the District decides to remove the current portable. [2009- Child Development NIPR Budget Priority #14] Status: L, M, and N portables offline line now used only for storage.
- 9. LCC Kinship Program recommends that the Kinship Classroom and Library stay together in one place for consistency and convenience of our elderly participants. [2009- Kinship NIPR] -
- 10. Status: completed moved to CDC building

- 11. LCC Kinship Program recommends that an alternate location be studied for the classroom and office through appropriate Status: completed moved to CDC building
- 12. Reconfigure the cubicles and office spaces to provide increased privacy and confidentiality, improve student services and efficiency. [2009–Enrollment Services NIPR Facilities] Status: completed addition walls constructed.
- 13. [2009-10-Agriculture IPR Priority]
 - a. Additional tack rooms for students Status: completed
 - b. Bleachers for spectators and clinics Status: completed
 - c. Completion of pipe corrals around arena and surrounding areas Status: completed

Facilities Master Plan revised and approved by the FPC February 2012